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Chairman’s Statement 

Highlights

Foreword

It is a pleasure to deliver this report on behalf of the Board and management team. This 
year has been a challenging but rewarding period of product expansion and project growth. 
,W�KDV�LQFRUSRUDWHG�WKH�ðQDO�SHULRG�RI�EXVLQHVV�UHSRVLWLRQLQJ�DQG�LQWHJUDWLRQ�QHFHVVDU\�WR�
create the appropriate launch pad and platform needed for Milestone’s future growth and 
development.
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Developments

In January 2013, the Company announced the launch of Milestone’s Passion Project, 
a youth engagement and employability programme aimed at inspiring young people to 
explore their passions and skills, which are then matched with vocational and employment 
opportunities. Using Milestone’s digital media and technological capabilities, along with 
DFFHVV�WR�WKH�JRRGV�DQG�VHUYLFHV�RI�VWURQJ�GHOLYHU\�SDUWQHUV��WKLV�SURJUDPPH�RσHUV�\RXQJ�
people holistic career and employability assistance in an easily accessible and appropriate 
manner. 

A key part of the Passion Project’s development has been the work undertaken with a 
number of focus groups. The data collected from a series of workshops and feedback 
sessions have helped to shape the Passion Project’s design and user process. These 
events were organised and led by Ximo Peris. Appointed as the Passion Project’s Youth 
Development Director in February 2013, his role has a clear direction and objective, which 
is to target and engage the young people and organisations that represent the Passion 
Project’s chosen audience. 

The Passion Project uses a 3-step approach incorporating both physical and digital 
DFWLYLWLHV�WR�HQJDJH�ZLWK�\RXQJ�SHRSOH��7KH�ðUVW�RI�WKH�3DVVLRQ�3URMHFWâV�SK\VLFDO�HYHQWV�
involved a pan London, 32-borough football knock-out competition, entitled BE United, 
and organised in conjunction with 10, and with the support of all, of London’s Professional 
Football Clubs’ Community Trust Schemes.

Passion Project

The launch of the Passion Project, a youth engagement and employability programme
Successful adaption and pilot of the SFK schools materials resulting in the launch of 
“Winning in the Game of Life” (Level 1) programme suitable for all UK primary schools
OnGuard Software developed resulting in revenue generating pilot post year-end
Oil Productions Ltd rebranded and repositioned, now trading as Relative
Establishment of the Milestone Foundation
Three key appointments - Kevin Everett to the Board as Non-Executive Director, Ximo Peris 
as Youth Development Director and Darren Groucutt as Creative Director of Relative

∙ 
∙

∙
∙
∙
∙
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This pilot competition involved several thousand young people and culminated with the 
ðQDOV�HYHQW��ZKLFK�ZDV�KHOG�DW�WKH�/RQGRQ�6RFFHUGRPH�RQ����)HEUXDU\�������$OO�WKH�
participants have registered on the BE United digital portal as part of the Passion Project 
pilot and will be given the opportunity to participate fully in the Passion Project as it 
expands. 

During the year, the Company established the Milestone Foundation (“Foundation”), 
a registered charity designed to underpin the Passion Project. The Foundation aims 
to tackle three key social problems: youth unemployment, lack of safe spaces and 
activities and a lack of activities to develop emotional intelligence. Its objectives are 
community participation in healthy recreation, advancement of education and the relief of 
unemployment, promotion of social inclusion and other charitable purposes. 

The Foundation is led by Kevin Everett and run by a Board of Trustees made up 
from Milestone Group team members. The Foundation will soon include a number of 
independently appointed Trustees and will be assisted by an advisory board made up of 
VHFWRU�VSHFLðF�SDUWQHUV��

Once independently funded, the Foundation will licence the Passion Project from Milestone 
Group. This complements the Company’s digital media and technical capabilities in the 
engagement and management of large audiences with the Foundation’s ability to deliver, 
monitor and record social outcomes resulting from the collaboration between the Passion 
Project and its delivery partners. 

Milestone Foundation

(DUO\�LQ�WKLV�SHULRG��WKH�&RPSDQ\�VLJQHG�D�GHðQLWLYH�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�6SLULWXDOLW\�IRU�.LGV�
(International) Inc. (“SFK”) for the use of a range of their educational materials. The initial 
PDWHULDOV�FKRVHQ�IRU�DGDSWDWLRQ�ZHUH�GHHPHG�DSSURSULDWH�IRU�.H\�6WDJH���/HYHO��<HDUV���
and 5 in primary schools). 

Milestone, in conjunction with Prospects and Prospects Improve, worked to adapt this 
ðUVW�OHYHO�RI�WKH�PDWHULDOV�WR�PHHW�WKH�8.�&XUULFXOXP�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�6SLULWXDO��&XOWXUDO��
Emotional and Social Education in primary schools as determined by the Department of 
Education’s proposed 2013 framework. It was agreed that in the event of a successful initial 
pilot further development on the Level 2 and 3 materials for primary schools and those for 
the secondary schools would be undertaken.

$�VXFFHVVIXO�SLORW�LQYROYLQJ����SULPDU\�VFKRROV�ZDV�FRPSOHWHG�LQ�-XO\�������7KH�SLORW�
IHHGEDFN�UHFHLYHG�UHVXOWHG�LQ�D�VHW�RI�ðQDO�DPHQGPHQWV�EHLQJ�PDGH�WR�WKH�PDWHULDOV�LQ�
1RYHPEHU������LQ�SUHSDUDWLRQ�IRU�D�QDWLRQDO�UROO�RXW�FRPPHQFLQJ�LQ�HDUO\������

As part of the adaptation, the programme was rebranded as “Winning in the Game of Life”. 
The programme is scheduled to deliver gross revenues of between £500 and £1,000 per 
level per school with a target market of the 22,000 UK primary schools. 

Since the period end, this has been followed up by an expansion in the scope of the legal 
agreement with SFK to include training materials for a wider range of age groups and 
provides the Company with an opportunity for focused and tailored training for young 
people as they ready themselves for the transition into working life.

SFK
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This expansion to the initial agreement allows the Company the opportunity to promote 
these training products to its key strategic delivery and distribution partners involved in the 
Passion Project and other delivery channels outside of the schools and education sector.

This extended agreement also enables Milestone and SFK to generate revenues from the 
co-creation and delivery of new materials including those appropriate for young people 
DJHG�EHWZHHQ����ò����ZKR�DUH�WHUPHG�DV�1((7âV���1RW�LQ�(PSOR\PHQW��(GXFDWLRQ�RU�
Training) and those involved in apprenticeship programmes. 

The positive changes in behaviour that have been independently recorded and evaluated 
UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�WKH�XVH�RI�WKHVH�PDWHULDOV��RσHUV�0LOHVWRQH�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�IRU�DWWUDFWLQJ�
social impact funding and further supports the aims of both the Passion Project and the 
Foundation.

1HW�UHYHQXHV�IURP�WKH�VDOH�RI�WKHVH�FROODERUDWHG�PDWHULDOV�ZLOO�EH�VSOLW�HTXDOO\�EHWZHHQ�
Milestone and SFK.

Having an in-house digital media and technical capability was deemed essential to the 
planned development and growth strategy of the Group. In August 2011, Milestone 
purchased Oil to act as an in-house enabler function for the development of the key 
products that are now shaping the Company’s future. 

Since the purchase of the Faciliated Electronic Data Software (“FEDS”) in August 2011, 
Milestone has been developing the OnSide product which will be further utilised in the 
Passion Project as it expands. The initial development work on the OnSide product has 
DOORZHG�IRU�D�VSLQ�Rσ�FDOOHG�2Q*XDUG�WR�EH�GHYHORSHG��2Q*XDUG�LV�D�EXVLQHVV�PDQDJHPHQW�
VROXWLRQ�VSHFLðFDOO\�WDUJHWLQJ�WKH�VHFXULW\�LQGXVWU\��,W�XWLOLVHV�WKH�ODWHVW�PRELOH�DQG�FORXG�
WHFKQRORJLHV�WR�VXSSRUW�WKH�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH��RSHUDWLRQDO�DQG�ðQDQFLDO�IXQFWLRQV�RI�WKH�
Manned Guarding sector. OnGuard provides audited process and resource management 
DORQJ�ZLWK�LQWHJUDWHG�EXVLQHVV�IXQFWLRQDOLW\��LPSURYLQJ�LQWHU�GHSDUWPHQWDO�HτFLHQFLHV�DQG�
reporting. 

0DUNHW�UHVHDUFK�VXJJHVWV�VLPLODU��EXW�ORZHU�VSHFLðFDWLRQ�SURGXFWV�DFKLHYH�OLFHQFLQJ�IHHV�
in the range of £10 to £80 per guard per calendar month, with OnGuard pitched between 
these. The Security Industry Authority (SIA) currently has 120,000 security personnel 
registered in UK, providing a market size of in excess of £28m.

Post period end, in October, Milestone signed an agreement to provide STM with a paid 
for pilot of the software solution. The value of this agreement has been heavily discounted 
from the £108,000 list price that would normally be applied for a 500-user agreement in 
recognition of STM’s contribution to the development of the project. STM is a UK based 
security company and an experienced supplier of solutions for manned security and 
FXVWRPHU�VHUYLFH�VWDσ��7KHLU�FOLHQWV�LQFOXGH�RYHU����VLWHV�RQ�WKH�/RQGRQ�2YHUJURXQG��
Southern Rail, South West Trains, Network Rail, English Heritage and Westgate Shopping 
Centres. 

Since the year-end STM have been working with Milestone to test and evaluate the product, 
giving Milestone the necessary feedback to develop additional functionality and revenue 
opportunities. 

Oil Productions Ltd (“Oil”), trading as Relative

OnGuard
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7KH�EHQHðWV�RI�KDYLQJ�D�VWURQJ�LQ�KRXVH�GHOLYHU\�WHDP�ZLWK�D�VKDUHG�FRPPRQ�IRFXV�FDQQRW�
be understated. It is becoming ever more evident that the recent restructure undertaken by 
the Board was the correct strategy to adopt. We are excited about the growing potential 
RσHUHG�E\�WKH�QHZ�SURGXFW�UDQJH�WKDW�LV�HPHUJLQJ�ZKLFK�ZH�EHOLHYH�KDV�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�WR�
EHFRPH�ERWK�KLJKO\�VFDODEOH�DQG�VLJQLðFDQW�LQ�WKHLU�UHYHQXH�JHQHUDWLQJ�FDSDELOLWLHV��

*RLQJ�IRUZDUG��2LO�VKRXOG�EH�FDSDEOH�RI�JHQHUDWLQJ�VWURQJ�UHYHQXHV�DQG�SURðWDELOLW\�LQ�LWV�
own right, but having taken time to look at this aspect of the business in depth and, as 
ZH�ñDJJHG�DW�WKH�$*0�ODVW�\HDU��WKH�'LUHFWRUV�PDGH�WKH�GHFLVLRQ�WR�H[LW�VRPH�RI�WKH�YHU\�
low / no margin digital business in favour of retaining the capacity to initially develop our 
own product range and then to refocus on much higher margin digital media work better 
suited to our skills. Whilst this has resulted in much lower revenues for 2013, this lays the 
IRXQGDWLRQV�IRU�D�VXVWDLQDEOH�DQG�SURðWDEOH�IXWXUH���

As previously reported, March 2013 saw changes in the management team of Oil with 
Darren Groucutt being appointed as the new Creative Director. This appointment formed 
part of the reshaping and rebranding of the company, which is now trading as Relative. 
7KH�QHZ�OHDGHUVKLS�WHDP�LQ�WKH�GLJLWDO�DJHQF\�KDV�QRZ�ðUPO\�HVWDEOLVKHG�LWVHOI�LQ�WKH�
PDUNHWSODFH�ZLQQLQJ�D�QXPEHU�RI�KLJK�SURðOH�FOLHQWV�LQ�WKH�ODWWHU�SDUW�RI�WKH�\HDU��

Relative has been key in developing the Company’s internal projects, particularly the 
Passion Project, OnGuard and Winning in the Game of Life whilst working hard to establish 
an external client pipeline. 

7KH�ðUVW�RI�LWV�RZQ�SURMHFWV�ZDV�3DQQD�3DLQW��DQ�LQWHUDFWLYH�IUHHVW\OH�IRRWEDOO�DSS�WKDW�
uses bespoke technology to give motion a visual dimension. This technology was 
further developed into B++, an immersive and interactive app using light, sound and live 
performance to create a visual experience. In conjunction with the Dollop DJs, B++ was 
used to take over the Barbican foyer for a 3-day residency during the month long Hack the 
Barbican event. 

The development of this technology and the media attention it received resulted in Relative 
EHLQJ�FKRVHQ�IURP�RYHU�������HQWUDQWV�DV�RQH�RI����ðQDOLVWV�WR�DWWHQG�WKH�1RNLD�)XWXUH�
Capture Hackathon held in Lund, Sweden, in August 2013. The event was designed to 
VKRZFDVH�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�RI�1RNLDâV�ñDJVKLS�PRELOH��WKH�/XPLD������DQG�LWV����PHJDSL[HO�
camera. Relative took the Panna Paint product and made a functional application for 
:LQGRZV�'HYLFHV���7KLV�DSS�KDV�JRQH�RQ�WR�UHFHLYH�MXVW�XQGHU��������GRZQORDGV�DQG�LV�
IHDWXUHG�LQ�WKH�1RNLD�&ROOHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�:LQGRZV�$SS�6WRUH��,Q�0DUFK�������5HODWLYH�ZLOO�
be attending South by Southwest (SXSW) in Austin, Texas, with a new version of the B++ 
platform as part of Hackney House’s award winning trade mission. 

Later in the year Relative was approached to work with Team GB to deliver the visual digital 
content for the British Olympic Association Ball in October 2013. This event was held at the 
Grosvenor Hotel in London and is a major fundraising event in the British Olympic Team’s 
calendar. 

Since the year-end, the work the team has put into the business is now starting to bear 
fruit. Relative has now built a strong pipeline of potential work, with a number of good size 
contracts in the latter stages of negotiation. Whilst there can be no certainty to the signing 
of new contracts, the Directors are increasingly and cautiously optimistic that the strategy 
of the production business is now on the right path and we look forward to updating the 
market further on this as and when appropriate. 
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During the year to 30 September 2012, the Group recognised the progress that Ve 
Interactive has made since the Group’s original investment by uplifting the value of its 
KROGLQJ�IURP�æ��������WR�æ���������,Q�WKLV�SHULRG��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�UHDOLVHG�RYHU�����RI�
this value by selling a portion of the asset at the uplifted value. 

Ve Interactive Ltd

The Board is pleased with the additions made to the management team during this period. 

In February 2013, Ximo Peris joined the team as Youth Development Director on the 
Passion Project.  Ximo previously worked with the London 2012 bid team to deliver the 
Computer Generated Imagery (“CGI”), as well as co-ordinating an extensive team, to create 
WKH�LPDJHV�DQG�ðOP�VHTXHQFHV�WKDW�FRPPXQLFDWHG�WKH�2O\PSLF�YLVLRQ�WR�D�JOREDO�DXGLHQFH��
6XEVHTXHQWO\��;LPR�ZRUNHG�ZLWK�&U\VWDO�&*�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�WHDP�WKDW�GHOLYHUHG�WKH�GLJLWDO�
content for the London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games.  

In his role within Milestone’s Passion Project, Ximo has been working with a number of 
focus groups incorporating a broad spectrum of diverse young people and initiatives from 
across London. The aim of engaging and working alongside focus groups is to collaborate 
and elicit feedback on the development of the Passion Project’s methodology ensuring it 
meets the target audience’s needs and expectations. 

In March 2013, Mike Bennett left Oil in order to concentrate on his other business activities 
and was replaced by Darren Groucutt as the Creative Director of Oil. Darren was previously 
HPSOR\HG�DW�&U\VWDO�&*�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�DV�WKH�&UHDWLYH�'LUHFWRU�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�ðOP�DQG�
animation, during which time he worked on the concept, delivery and direction of extensive 
high-level digital content for the London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games. Darren 
is keen to build upon his past successes and is focused upon building a team of young 
creative talent. It is a testament to the Company’s vision for both Relative and the Group as 
a whole that two highly talented and industry-renowned creative individuals such as Darren 
and Ximo have chosen to join our team. 

In May 2013, Kevin Everett was appointed to the Board of Milestone as a Non-Executive 
Director. Kevin is currently Treasurer and Chairman of the Board of the Sir John Cass 
Foundation. Kevin has over 22 years experience in the charitable sector and is a common 
councilman of the City of London Corporation. During his career, Kevin has balanced 
professional and charitable careers, particularly focusing on business and education. 
He has vast experience in connecting foundations with the corporate sector, a model 
now used by industry to bring education and employers closer together. One of his key 
responsibilities as a member of the Milestone team will be to lead the development of the 
Foundation, its Board of Trustees and its advisory board.

Management Changes

'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU��WKH�*URXSâV�QHW�ORVV�ZDV�æ���������������æ������������ZKLFK�LQFOXGHV�
D�UHDOLVHG�JDLQ�RQ�WKH�VDOH�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV�RI�æ���������5HYHQXHV�ZHUH�æ���������������
æ���������GXH�WR�D�ODUJH�DPRXQW�RI�ZRUN�EHLQJ�FDUULHG�RXW�WR�GHYHORS�WKH�LQWHUQDO�SURMHFWV��
including the Passion Project, SFK and OnGuard.

Financial Summary



These products are now in the position to create revenues, as well as delivering inspiring 
change to the lives of young people and the opportunity to attract social impact funding. 
1HW�/LDELOLWLHV�DW�WKH�SHULRG�HQG�ZHUH�æ�����������������æ�����������

These results are presented under European Union Adopted International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“EU Adopted IFRS”). 
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'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU��WKH�&RPSDQ\�LVVXHG������������QHZ�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�IRU�D�WRWDO�
FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�æ��������RI�ZKLFK�æ��������ZDV�UHFHLYHG�LQ�FDVK��æ�������ZDV�LQ�
exchange for goods or services received and the remainder was part of the purchase of the 
FEDS Software and of Oil Productions Ltd. 

6LQFH�WKH�\HDU�HQG��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�LVVXHG������������QHZ�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV��UDLVLQJ�
æ��������LQ�FDVK��H[FKDQJLQJ�æ�������ZRUWK�IRU�VHUYLFHV�DQG�æ�������IRU�WKH�ðQDO�WUDQFKH�
of the purchase of Oil Productions. The Company continues to carefully manage its working 
capital position and will need to raise further monies through subscriptions for new shares 
in the short term to continue to support its business activities until they are fully revenue 
generating. 

7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�ðUPO\�IRFXVHG�RQ�JHQHUDWLQJ�UHYHQXH�WKURXJK�DOO�RI�LWV�DFWLYLWLHV�DV�ZHOO�
as developing further opportunities. Protecting the interest of the Company’s current 
shareholders is a priority and the Board’s strategy is to seek to raise funds on a basis that 
is fair to all.

Funding

The Directors believe that Milestone has come through an extensive period of 
redevelopment and has now established a demonstrable base from which new and 
sustainable revenues and growth can be delivered across each of its exciting projects.  

Outlook

Deborah White
*OPLM�,_LJ\[P]L�6ɉJLY�HUK�0U[LYPT�*OHPYTHU
���-LIY\HY`�����
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Deborah White, Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chairman 
served as Non-Executive Director, 15 January 2008 to 31 March 2008
DSSRLQWHG�DV�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2τFHU�����0DUFK������
appointed as Executive Director (combining functions of Chief Executive
2τFHU�DQG�&KDLUPDQ�����)HEUXDU\�����

∙ 
∙
∙

appointed as Group Financial Director, 10 July 2012 ∙ 
Jim Brown, Group Financial Director

appointed as Technical and Development Director, 28 December 2011∙ 
Anthony Sanders, Technical and Development Director

David Hill, Non-Executive Director
appointed as Non-Executive, 15 August 2011∙ 

Kevin Everett, Non-Executive Director
appointed as Non-Executive, 16 May 2013∙ 

Company Secretary:
Jim Brown

appointed 1 February 2013∙ 

Company Details:
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Strategic Report for the year
ended 30 September 2013

7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�*URXS�IRU�WKH�\HDU�DUH�VHW�RXW�RQ�SDJH����RI�WKLV�UHSRUW�DQG�
VKRZ�WKH�ORVV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�RI�æ���������������æ�����������ZLWK�WRWDO�UHYHQXHV�RI�æ��������
�������æ���������

The Directors are unable to recommend the payment of a dividend (2012: nil). 

Results and dividends

A description of the Group’s principal activities and a review of the year are held within the 
Chairman’s statement above. 

7KH�*URXS�RσHUV�LWV�VKDUHKROGHUV�H[SRVXUH�WR�WKH�GLJLWDO�PHGLD�VHFWRU��0LOHVWRQH�EULQJV�
together media practices and technology to deliver interactive digital solutions across web, 
phone and portable media, whilst supporting social change.

Principal activities, review of business and
future developments

7KH�SULQFLSDO�IRFXV�RI�WKH�*URXS�KDV�EHHQ�WR�FUHDWH�D�VXVWDLQDEOH��SURðWDEOH�EXVLQHVV�
that also delivers positive social change and impact. Each of the projects have now been 
ODXQFKHG�DQG�WKH�%RDUG�ZLOO�PRQLWRU�ðQDQFLDO�DQG�QRQ�ðQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�LQGLFDWRUV�
appropriate to each of the projects and activities as they are developed.

The key performance indicators for the Group’s operations during the year are the control 
RI�FHQWUDO�FRVWV�DJDLQVW�H[SHFWHG�IXWXUH�EHQHðWV��DORQJ�ZLWK�UHYHQXHV�DQG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�
levels for all projects.

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”)

7KH�*URXS�KDG�æ��������RI�LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�ORDQV�RXWVWDQGLQJ�DW�WKH�\HDU�HQG��������
æ�����������7KH�*URXSâV�PRGHVW�FDVK�UHVHUYHV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZHUH�KHOG�LQ�EDQN�FXUUHQW�
and deposit accounts.  A detailed description of how the Group manages risks and 
XQFHUWDLQW\�VXUURXQGLQJ�ðQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO��LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�DQG�OLTXLGLW\�LV�
KHOG�LQ�QRWH����WR�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

This annual report contains certain forward looking statements with respect to the principal 
ULVNV�DQG�XQFHUWDLQWLHV�IDFLQJ�WKH�*URXS���7KHVH�VWDWHPHQWV�FDQ�EH�LGHQWLðHG�E\�WKH�XVH�
of forward looking terminology such as “believe”, “could”, “expects”, “plan”, “anticipate”, 
“envisage”, “estimate”, “intend”, “should”, “may” or comparable terminology indicating 
expectations or beliefs concerning future events.  By their very nature, these forward 
looking statements involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and depend 
on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future.  There are a number of factors 
WKDW�FRXOG�FDXVH�DFWXDO�UHVXOWV�RU�GHYHORSPHQWV�WR�GLσHU�PDWHULDOO\�IURP�WKRVH�H[SUHVVHG�
RU�LPSOLHG�E\�WKHVH�IRUZDUG�ORRNLQJ�VWDWHPHQWV���7KH�IRUZDUG�ORRNLQJ�VWDWHPHQWV�UHñHFW�WKH�

Financial instruments and principal risks and uncertainties
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knowledge and information available at the date of preparation of this annual report and 
will not be updated during the year.  Nothing in this annual report should be construed as a 
SURðW�IRUHFDVW�

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�FRQVLGHU�FDVK�ñRZ�WR�EH�WKH�PDWHULDO�ðQDQFLDO�ULVN�WR�WKH�*URXS�LQ�WKH�
immediate future. As the new projects and platforms are rolled out by the Group, the risks 
impacting the Group will change and these changes will be expanded upon as the various 
projects and initiatives are commercialised.

Events after the Reporting Period

(YHQWV�DIWHU�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�DUH�VHW�RXW�LQ�QRWH����WR�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Going Concern

:KLOVW�WKH�*URXS�KDV�PDGH�D�ORVV�LQ�WKH�\HDU�DQG�KDG�QHW�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�æ�����������������
æ���������DW�WKH�\HDU�HQG��WKH�%RDUG�IHHO�LW�LV�DSSURSULDWH�WR�DGRSW�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�
LQ�SUHSDULQJ�WKH�DQQXDO�UHSRUWV�DQG�DFFRXQWV���7KHUH�DUH�VLJQLðFDQW�ULVNV�DQG�XQFHUWDLQWLHV�
surrounding the going concern assumption and these are fully discussed and disclosed in 
note 1 and 2 to the annual report and accounts.

Deborah White
*OPLM�,_LJ\[P]L�6ɉJLY�HUK�0U[LYPT�*OHPYTHU
���-LIY\HY`�����

By order of the Board

Financial instruments and principal
risks and uncertainties (continued)
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Report of the Directors for the
year ended 30 September 2013

'HERUDK�:KLWH��&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2τFHU�DQG�,QWHULP�&KDLUPDQ
Jim Brown, Group Finance Director
Anthony Sanders, Technical and Development Director 
David Hill, Non-Executive Director 
Kevin Everett, Non-Executive Director (appointed 16 May 2013)

Directors in the year

Substantial shareholdings

The annual report and accounts and the interim statement at each half year are the primary 
vehicles for communication with shareholders.  These documents are also distributed to 
other parties who have expressed an interest in the Group’s performance. Group results 
can be viewed on the Company website (www.milestonegroup.co.uk).

Each year shareholders are invited to an annual general meeting (“AGM”).  The AGM is 
the main shareholder event of the year and provides an opportunity for shareholders to 
TXHVWLRQ�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�

6KDUHKROGHUV�ZKR�KDYH�DQ\�TXHULHV�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKHLU�VKDUHKROGLQJV�RU�WR�WKH�DσDLUV�RI�
Milestone generally are invited to contact the Company Secretary at the Company’s 
registered address.

'XULQJ�-DQXDU\�������QHZ�SURYLVLRQV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW������FDPH�LQWR�IRUFH�
regarding the ways that a company is permitted to communicate with its shareholders. 

Communication with shareholders

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�SUHVHQW�WKHLU�UHSRUW�WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�WKH�DXGLWHG�ðQDQFLDO�
statements for the year ended 30 September 2013.

Ordinary Shares held at
25 February 2014

Deborah Jane White 34,883,774      (7.73%)
HBS 049 Limited 30,000,000      (6.65%)
Paul Stephen Musgrove 22,766,268      (5.01%)
BGP Global Services Ltd 19,487,013      (4.32%)
Portland Services Morocco Sarl. 16,666,667      (3.69%)
Martin King 13,667,049      (3.03%)
Andrew Beddows 13,582,722      (3.01%)

6R�IDU�DV�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�DZDUH�DQG�VXEMHFW�WR�DQ\�QHZ�QRWLðFDWLRQV�UHFHLYHG�DIWHU����
)HEUXDU\�������WKH�IROORZLQJ�SHUVRQV�KDYH�D�QRWLðDEOH�LQWHUHVW�LQ�WKH�RUGLQDU\�VKDUH�
capital of the Company (3 per cent or more of the Company’s ordinary shares; please note 
percentages are rounded):
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0LOHVWRQH�SXW�D�UHVROXWLRQ�WR�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUV�DW�WKH�$*0�LQ�0DUFK������UHTXHVWLQJ�
permission to use its website to publish statutory documents and communications to 
shareholders, such as Annual Report and Accounts, as its default method of publication. 

This resolution was duly passed and we therefore publish all shareholder information 
including the AGM Notice of Meeting and Annual Report and Accounts on the Company 
website at www.milestonegrup.co.uk/investors. Reducing the number of communications 
sent by post not only results in cost savings to the Company but also reduces the impact 
that the unnecessary printing and distribution of reports has on the environment. 

The nature of Milestone’s business means that it is unlikely to be a major polluter but the 
Board is mindful of the potential impact on the environment of Group activities.  The Board 
recognises its responsibility to the environment in areas such as energy management, 
paper usage, waste reduction and recycling, and communications. 

The Board are also focused on ensuring that there is positive social change alongside the 
commercial aspects of the business. Further information on the steps being taken to deliver 
this can be found in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 2 to 6 of this report. 

Environmental matters

The Board is responsible for formulating, reviewing and approving the Group’s strategies, 
budgets, major items of capital expenditure and corporate actions. 

At the end of the year the Board of the Company comprised three Executive Directors, 
Deborah White, Jim Brown and Anthony Sanders, and two Non-Executive Directors, David 
+LOO�DQG�.HYLQ�(YHUHWW��2WKHU�'LUHFWRUV�ZKR�KHOG�RτFH�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�DUH�VHW�RXW�DW�WKH�
beginning of this report, together with their appointment and resignation dates.  Each 
Director has extensive and relevant business experience. Brief biographies of the Directors 
are set out below in this report. 

The Board is currently of the opinion that, given the present size of the Group, it is 
inappropriate to retain separate sub-committees but intends to keep this matter under 
continuous review.

The Board believes that this is an appropriate structure for the Company at its current stage 
RI�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�WKDW�WKHUH�LV�VXτFLHQW�H[SHUWLVH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�%RDUG�WR�IDFLOLWDWH�D�VRXQG�
decision-making process and control environment in the short-term. 

'HWDLOV�RI�WKH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�QRWH���RI�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�
statements. Future remuneration will be dependent on the growth of the Company. 

Board of Directors

Communication with shareholders (continued)
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Deborah has over 20 years experience in the Financial Services sector and has built a 
number of successful businesses. Seeing the potential of Milestone Group PLC, she 
SHUVRQDOO\�DFTXLUHG�D�PDMRU�VWDNH�LQ�WKH�EXVLQHVV�DQG�WRRN�WKH�SRVLWLRQ�RI�&(2�LQ�������
Since then, she has driven substantial change in the Company through her leadership, 
YLVLRQ�DQG�H[WHQVLYH�QHWZRUN�RI�NH\�LQGXVWU\�FRQWDFWV��7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�QRZ�ðUPO\�
positioned as a digital media and technology group.

'HERUDK�LV�SDVVLRQDWH�DERXW�PDNLQJ�D�GLσHUHQFH��ERWK�LQ�WKH�EXVLQHVV�FRPPXQLW\�DQG�
VRFLHW\�LQ�JHQHUDO��)URP�WKLV�YLVLRQ��WKH�3DVVLRQ�3URMHFW�ZDV�IRUPHG��,W�KDV�EHHQ�UHðQHG�
over a number of years and has been designed to use media and technology to bring 
WRJHWKHU�PDQ\�GLσHUHQW�VWUDQGV�RI�VRFLHW\�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�XQORFNLQJ�ERWK�KXPDQ�DQG�
commercial potential.

Deborah White,
Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chairman

Director’s Profiles

-LP�TXDOLðHG�DV�D�&KDUWHUHG�$FFRXQWDQW�LQ������DQG�VSHQW�PRVW�RI�KLV�FDUHHU�ZLWK�$Q-
dersen (formerly Arthur Andersen) in London and Bristol, working with a range of private 
and listed companies. More recently he was a partner at Baker Tilly LLP and then at BDO 
//3��-LP�LV�IRFXVHG�RQ�GULYLQJ�UDSLG�DQG�SURðWDEOH�JURZWK��LPSOHPHQWLQJ�H[FHOOHQW�ðQDQFLDO�
management standards and managing corporate transactions.

Jim Brown, 
Group Finance Director

Tony has over 30 years technology experience and has been responsible for growing 
several businesses and overseeing the development of a number of award winning 
products. He has worked for various companies including British Telecom, ICM (Phoenix IT 
Group PLC), Thorn EMI and Hill Samuel.

)URP�������7RQ\�IRFXVVHG�RQ�GHYHORSLQJ�,7�EXVLQHVVHV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�%XVLQHVV�&RQWLQXLW\�
and IT Services arena. He was founding director of Assurity Europe Ltd and oversaw its 
JURZWK�DQG�VXEVHTXHQW�VDOH�WR�WKH�,&0�&RPSXWHU�*URXS�3/&��ZKHUH�KH�WRRN�XS�WKH�UROH�
of Technical and Operations Director. Most recently he was Technical and Development 
Director for ICM (Phoenix IT Group PLC) where he was responsible for the business and 
product development strategy.

Anthony Sanders, 
Technical and Development Director

David Hill, 
Non-executive Director
After graduating from the University of Birmingham with a Bachelor of Commerce in 
Accounting & Finance, David joined Price Waterhouse principally in the Corporate Recovery 
team before changing direction and moving to the City. Since then he has spent over 15 
years in the City, initially in Investment Banking with Nomura and Deutsche Bank before 
moving into Asset Management where he was most recently the Fixed Income Chief 
2SHUDWLQJ�2τFHU�IRU�$EHUGHHQ�$VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW��ì$$0ú���'DYLG�ZDV�D�PHPEHU�RI�
$$0âV�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�FRPPLWWHH�DV�ZHOO�DV�D�ðGXFLDU\�FRPSDQ\�GLUHFWRU�RI�YDULRXV�$$0�
subsidiary entities, registered and regulated by the FSA.
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.HYLQ�KDV�H[WHQVLYH�VWUDWHJLF��RSHUDWLRQDO�DQG�ðQDQFLDO�H[SHULHQFH���+H�KDV�EDODQFHG�
professional and charitable careers, particularly focusing on business and education. He 
has vast experience in connecting foundations with the corporate sector, a model now used 
by industry to bring education and employers closer together.

Kevin is currently Treasurer and Chairman of the Board of the Sir John Cass Foundation. 
During his 23 years on the Board, he has led the restructuring of the Foundation, increasing 
their assets from £16m to £120m.  His early support for specialist schools, linked with his 
belief in the model of putting education and employers together, has helped increase Sir 
-RKQ�&DVVâ�)RXQGDWLRQâV�JUDQW�FDSDFLW\�DQG�EHQHðW�IURP�æ���N�WR�RYHU�æ�P�

In his early career, Kevin was a voluntary youth leader in Tower Hamlets, a role he held 
IURP������WR�������7KLV�OHG�LQ�WKH�HDUO\�����V�WR�WKH�EXLOGLQJ�RI�D�0HQWDO�+HDOWK�5HVRXUFH�
Centre in the area. Kevin has previously served as a director on a number of Boards, both 
FRPPHUFLDO�DQG�QRW�IRU�SURðW��+H�LV�DOVR�D�&KDLUPDQ�RI�WKH�9DOXDWLRQ�7ULEXQDO�IRU�(QJODQG�

Kevin is a key player in the development of a number of Milestone’s initiatives and will be 
taking the lead on the further development of the Milestone Foundation.

Kevin Everett,
Non-executive Director

Directors’ shareholdings

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WKHLU�EHQHðFLDO�LQWHUHVWV�DV�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU�DQG�DV�
DW����)HEUXDU\�������LQFOXGLQJ�WKRVH�RI�WKHLU�LPPHGLDWH�IDPLO\�DQG�DQ\�FRPSDQ\�FRQWUROOHG�
by them) in the share capital of Milestone are shown below:

Ordinary shares of 
0.1p each held at 
25 February 2014

Ordinary shares of 
0.1p each held at 

30 September 2013

Ordinary shares of 
0.1p each held at 

30 September 2012
Deborah Jane White 34,883,774 34,883,774 34,833,774
Jim Brown - - -
Anthony Sanders 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
David Hill 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Kevin Everett - - -

No Directors’ share options were exercised in the year (2012: nil) and there were 10,000,000 
Directors options outstanding at the end of the year.

'HWDLOV�RI�DQ\�'LUHFWRUVâ�LQWHUHVWV�LQ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�RI�WKH�*URXS�DUH�JLYHQ�LQ�QRWH����WR�WKHVH�
ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

4XDOLI\LQJ�WKLUG�SDUW\�LQGHPQLW\�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�WKH�EHQHðW�RI�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�ZDV�LQ�SODFH�GXULQJ�
the year and continues to remain in place.



15

Financial instruments and principal risks and uncertainties are set out in the Strategic 
5HSRUW�RQ�SDJH���

Financial instruments and principal risks and uncertainties

(YHQWV�DIWHU�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�DUH�VHW�RXW�LQ�QRWH����WR�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Events after the Reporting Period

In the case of each person who was a Director at the time this report was approved: 

Auditors

This information is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 
V����RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW������

1H[LD�6PLWK�	�:LOOLDPVRQ�$XGLW�/WG�H[SUHVVHG�WKHLU�ZLOOLQJQHVV�WR�FRQWLQXH�LQ�RτFH�
A resolution to re-appoint them will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

so far as that Director was aware there was no relevant audit information of which the 
Company’s auditors were unaware; and 
that Director had taken all steps that the Director ought to have taken as a Director to 
make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
Company’s auditors were aware of that information.

∙ 

∙

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with 
UHDVRQDEOH�DFFXUDF\�DW�DQ\�WLPH�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�*URXS��IRU�VDIHJXDUGLQJ�WKH�
assets of the Company, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of 
fraud and other irregularities and for the preparation of a Strategic Report and a Directors’ 
UHSRUW�WKDW�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW������

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�SUHSDULQJ�WKH�DQQXDO�UHSRUW�DQG�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW�������7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�DOVR�UHTXLUHG�WR�SUHSDUH�
ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�*URXS�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�
Standards (“IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union and the rules of the London Stock 
Exchange for companies trading securities on the Alternative Investment Market. The 
'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�FKRVHQ�WR�SUHSDUH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

Group financial statements

,QWHUQDWLRQDO�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUG���UHTXLUHV�WKDW�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�SUHVHQW�IDLUO\�IRU�
HDFK�ðQDQFLDO�\HDU�WKH�*URXSâV�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��ðQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�FDVK�ñRZV��
In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all 
applicable IFRSs.
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Group financial statements (continued)

$�IDLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�DOVR�UHTXLUHV�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�WR�

consistently select and apply appropriate accounting policies;
present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, 
reliable, comparable and understandable information; and
SURYLGH�DGGLWLRQDO�GLVFORVXUHV�ZKHQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�VSHFLðF�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LQ�,)56V�
LV�LQVXτFLHQW�WR�HQDEOH�XVHUV�WR�XQGHUVWDQG�WKH�LPSDFW�RI�SDUWLFXODU�WUDQVDFWLRQV��RWKHU�
HYHQWV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RQ�WKH�HQWLW\âV�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�ðQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�

∙ 
∙

∙

Parent Company financial statements

&RPSDQ\�ODZ�UHTXLUHV�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�WR�SUHSDUH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�HDFK�ðQDQFLDO�\HDU�
ZKLFK�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�DσDLUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�RI�WKH�SURðW�RU�
ORVV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IRU�WKDW�SHULRG��,Q�SUHSDULQJ�WKHVH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��WKH�'LUHFWRUV�
DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
SUHSDUH�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RQ�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�XQOHVV�LW�LV�LQDSSURSULDWH�WR�
presume that the Company will continue in business;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 
GHSDUWXUHV�GLVFORVHG�DQG�H[SODLQHG�LQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

∙ 
∙

∙
∙

Deborah White
*OPLM�,_LJ\[P]L�6ɉJLY�HUK�0U[LYPT�*OHPYTHU
���-LIY\HY`�����

By order of the Board

Financial statements are published on the Company’s website in accordance with 
OHJLVODWLRQ�LQ�WKH�8QLWHG�.LQJGRP�JRYHUQLQJ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�GLVVHPLQDWLRQ�RI�ðQDQFLDO�
statements, which may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and 
integrity of the Company’s website is the responsibility of the Directors. The Directors’ 
UHVSRQVLELOLW\�DOVR�H[WHQGV�WR�WKH�RQJRLQJ�LQWHJULW\�RI�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRQWDLQHG�
therein.
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:H�KDYH�DXGLWHG�WKH�JURXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�0LOHVWRQH�*URXS�3/&�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�
30 September 2013, which comprise the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the 
Group Statement of Financial Position, the Group Statement of Cash Flows, the Group 
6WDWHPHQW�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\�DQG�WKH�UHODWHG�QRWHV���WR�����7KH�ðQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with 
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.  Our audit work has been undertaken 
VR�WKDW�ZH�PLJKW�VWDWH�WR�WKH�FRPSDQ\âV�PHPEHUV�WKRVH�PDWWHUV�ZH�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�VWDWH�
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the 
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 15, 
WKH�GLUHFWRUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�JURXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�IRU�
EHLQJ�VDWLVðHG�WKDW�WKH\�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ��2XU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�LV�WR�DXGLW�DQG�H[SUHVV�
DQ�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�JURXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DSSOLFDEOH�ODZ�DQG�
,QWHUQDWLRQDO�6WDQGDUGV�RQ�$XGLWLQJ��8.�DQG�,UHODQG����7KRVH�VWDQGDUGV�UHTXLUH�XV�WR�FRPSO\�
with the Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

$�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�VFRSH�RI�DQ�DXGLW�RI�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LV�SURYLGHG�RQ�WKH�)5&âV�
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ�WKH�JURXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�WKH�JURXSâV�DσDLUV�DV�DW����6HSWHPEHU������DQG�RI�
its loss for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; 
and
KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW������

∙ 

∙

∙

,Q�IRUPLQJ�RXU�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��ZKLFK�LV�QRW�PRGLðHG��ZH�KDYH�
FRQVLGHUHG�WKH�DGHTXDF\�RI�WKH�GLVFORVXUH�PDGH�LQ�QRWH���WR�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
concerning the group’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

Emphasis of matter - Going concern
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The going concern status of the group is dependent upon the management of the timing 
of settlement of its liabilities and the raising of further funds in the immediate to short term 
DQG�WKHUHDIWHU�RQ�WKH�IRUHFDVW�SURðWDELOLW\�RI�NH\�SURMHFWV�ZKLFK�KDYH�QRW�\HW�FRPPHQFHG�
and for which the degree of success cannot yet be reliably demonstrated. 

Forecasts prepared by management indicate that if they are unable to manage the group’s 
liabilities as planned or the external fundraising does not occur in the immediate term and, 
VXEVHTXHQWO\��WKH�IXWXUH�SURMHFWV�GR�QRW�SURYH�DV�SURðWDEOH�DV�IRUHFDVW�WKH�JURXS�ZRXOG�
KDYH�DQ�LPPHGLDWH�UHTXLUHPHQW�WR�VHHN�DOWHUQDWLYH�VRXUFHV�RI�IXQGLQJ�

7KHVH�FRQGLWLRQV��DORQJ�ZLWK�WKH�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�H[SODLQHG�LQ�QRWH���WR�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV��LQGLFDWH�WKH�H[LVWHQFH�RI�D�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQW\�ZKLFK�PD\�FDVW�VLJQLðFDQW�
GRXEW�DERXW�WKH�JURXSâV�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ��7KH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
do not include the adjustments that would result if the group was unable to continue as a 
going concern.

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the 
ðQDQFLDO�\HDU�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�JURXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�LV�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�
JURXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

James Keeton  
Senior Statutory Auditor, for and on behalf of 
Nexia Smith & Williamson 
Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants
Portwall Place
Portwall Lane
Bristol 
BS1 6NA 

'DWH�����)HEUXDU\�����
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Opinion on other matter prescribed 
by the Companies Act 2006

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Other matter

FHUWDLQ�GLVFORVXUHV�RI�GLUHFWRUVâ�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�VSHFLðHG�E\�ODZ�DUH�QRW�PDGH��RU
ZH�KDYH�QRW�UHFHLYHG�DOO�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQV�ZH�UHTXLUH�IRU�RXU�DXGLW�

∙ 
∙

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 
�����UHTXLUHV�XV�WR�UHSRUW�WR�\RX�LI��LQ�RXU�RSLQLRQ�

:H�KDYH�UHSRUWHG�VHSDUDWHO\�RQ�WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�0LOHVWRQH�
Group PLC for the year ended 30 September 2013.

Emphasis of matter - Going concern (continued)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income for the year ended 30 September 2013

7KH�QRWHV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����IRUP�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Note 2013 2012
£ £

Revenue 1, 4 152,373 776,391

Cost of sales (119,924) (429,345)

*URVV�3URÀW 32,449 347,046

Other operating income 287,500 2,500
Realised gain on disposal 440,605 -
Administrative expenses 5 (1,632,909) (1,641,338)

(904,804) (1,638,838)

Loss from operations 5 (872,355) (1,291,792)

Finance expense 7 (108,232) (169,552)
Finance income 17 94

Loss before taxation (980,570) (1,461,220)

Taxation credit 8 - 65,590

Net loss for the year (980,570) (1,395,630)

,WHPV�ZKLFK�PD\�EH�UHFODVVLÀHG�VXEVHTXHQWO\�WR�SURÀW�RU�
loss
Adjustment in carrying value of available for sale investments (23,160) 808,889
5HF\FOLQJ�RI�UHDOLVHG�JDLQ�RQ�VDOH�RI�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV 13 (440,605) -

Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,444,334) (586,741)

Attributable to owners of the parent (1,444,334) (586,741)

Basic and diluted loss per share (pence) 10 (0.24) (0.42)
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Consolidated statement of financial position at 
30 September 2013          Company No: 04689130

7KH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�DXWKRULVHG�IRU�LVVXH
RQ����)HEUXDU\�����

7KH�QRWHV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����IRUP�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Note 2013 2012
£ £

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 189,488 540,342
Available for sale investments 13 454,763 971,713

644,251 1,512,055

Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 50,728 87,195
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV 17,025 40,409

67,753 127,604

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 (1,259,017) (1,165,891)
Interest bearing loans 16 (470,937) (422,114)

(1,729,954) (1,588,005)

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 18 - -
Other payables 17 - (160,000)

- (160,000)

Net liabilities (1,017,950) (108,346)

Capital and reserves attributable to 
owners of the Company
Share capital 20 417,178 372,977
Share premium account 11,847,178 11,395,961
Shares to be issued 109,313 70,000
Merger reserve 11,119,585 11,119,585
Capital redemption reserve 2,732,904 2,732,904
Retained losses (27,244,108) (25,799,773)
Total Equity (1,017,950) (108,346)

Deborah White
*OPLM�,_LJ\[P]L�6ɉJLY�HUK�0U[LYPT�*OHPYTHU
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-

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the 
year ended 30 September 2013

7KH�QRWHV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����IRUP�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

&DVK�ÁRZ�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV Note 2013 2012
£ £

Loss for the year (980,570) (1,395,630)
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets 37,814 248,779
Depreciation of tangible assets - 8,293
Realised gain on disposal of investments (440,605) -
Impairment of goodwill 313,040 -
Net bank and other interest charges 108,215 169,428
Issue of share options / warrants charge - 32,909
Services settled by the issue of shares 16,768 25,495
Adjustment to deferred consideration payable (280,000) (45,025)
Release of deferred tax provisions - (65,590)

1HW�FDVK�EHIRUH�FKDQJHV�LQ�ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO (1,225,338) (1,021,341)

Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables 36,468 169,516
(Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables 275,219 (38,844)

Cash from operations (913,651) (890,669)

Interest received 17 94
Interest paid (2,248) (5,035)

1HW�FDVK�ÁRZV�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV (915,882) (895,610)

,QYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV
Proceeds from sale of held for sale investments 447,135 -

-
1HW�FDVK�ÁRZV�XVHG�LQ�LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV 447,135 -

)LQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV
Issue of ordinary share capital 407,500 812,386
Repayment of loan (93,137) (3,500)
New loans raised 131,000 39,020

1HW�FDVK�ÁRZV�IURP�ÀQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV 445,363 847,906

Net (decrease) / increase in cash (23,384) (47,704)
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�\HDU 40,409 88,113

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 27 17,025 40,409
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Share 
Capital

Share 
Premium

Shares to 
be issued

Other 
Reserves

Retained 
(DUQLQJV

Total 
Equity

£ £ £ £ £ £

Balance at 
30 Sept 2011 289,228 10,641,830 - 13,852,489 (25,245,941) (462,394)

Loss for the 
year - - - - (1,395,630) (1,395,630)
Other 
comprehensive 
income - - - - 808,889 808,889
Shares issued 83,749 754,131 - - - 837,880
Share options/ 
warrants - - - - 32,909 32,909
5HFODVVLÀFDWLRQ�
from trade and 
other payables - - 70,000 - - 70,000

Balance at 
30 Sept 2012 372,977 11,395,961 70,000 13,852,489 (25,799,773) (108,346)

Loss for the 
year - - - - (980,570) (980,570)
Other 
comprehensive 
income - - - - (463,765) (463,765)
Cash received 
in advance of 
share issue - - 69,313 - - 69,313
Shares issued 44,201 451,217 (30,000) - - 465,418
Share options/ 
warrants - - - - - -

Balance at 
30 Sept 2013 417,178 11,847,178 109,313 13,852,489 (27,244,108) (1,017,950)
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2Q�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�)('6���/,0,7�WKH�GHIHUUHG�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�LV�SD\DEOH�LQ�VKDUHV�DW�D�
ð[HG�PDUNHW�SULFH��7KLV�GHIHUUHG�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�LV�SD\DEOH�RQ�WKH�DFKLHYHPHQW�RI�FHUWDLQ�
performance criteria. Part of these criteria has been met with the issue of £30,000 worth of 
shares, the remaining criteria are also expected to be met. 

3ULRU�WR�WKH�\HDU�HQG��FDVK�RI�æ�������ZDV�UHFHLYHG�LQ�DGYDQFH�RI�WKH�LVVXH�RI�WKH�DVVRFLDWHG�
HTXLW\�VKDUHV��ZKLFK�ZHUH�LVVXHG�WR�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH��

The other reserves relate to the merger reserve and the capital redemption reserve. 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended 30 September 2013
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Notes to the consolidated accounts for
the year ended 30 September 2013
The principal activity of Milestone Group PLC and its subsidiaries (the Group) is the 
provision of multimedia and technology solutions. 

Milestone Group PLC is the Group’s ultimate parent company, and it is incorporated in the 
8QLWHG�.LQJGRP�ZLWK�UHJLVWUDWLRQ�QXPEHU������������0LOHVWRQH�*URXS�3/&�LV�GRPLFLOHG�LQ�
WKH�8QLWHG�.LQJGRP�DQG�KDV�LWV�UHJLVWHUHG�RτFH�DW��VW�)ORRU����5R\DO�([FKDQJH�6WHSV��7KH�
Royal Exchange, London EC3V 3DG and this is its principal place of business.

0LOHVWRQH�*URXS�3/&âV�VKDUHV�DUH�TXRWHG�RQ�WKH�$,0�PDUNHW�RI�WKH�/RQGRQ�6WRFN�
Exchange. 

0LOHVWRQH�*URXS�3/&âV�FRQVROLGDWHG�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�3RXQGV�6WHUOLQJ�
(£), which is also the functional currency of the parent Company.

7KH�SULQFLSDO�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DGRSWHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
are set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated.

7KH�*URXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
(collectively IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
adopted by European Union (“EU Adopted IFRSs”), and with those parts of the Companies 
$FW������DSSOLFDEOH�WR�FRPSDQLHV�SUHSDULQJ�WKHLU�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�XQGHU�(8�$GRSWHG�
IFRSs. 

5L^�Z[HUKHYKZ��PU[LYWYL[H[PVUZ�HUK�HTLUKTLU[Z�LɈLJ[P]L�MYVT���6J[VILY�����

1RQH�RI�WKH�QHZ�VWDQGDUGV��LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV�DQG�DPHQGPHQWV��HσHFWLYH�IRU�WKH�ðUVW�WLPH�
IURP���2FWREHU�������KDYH�KDG�D�PDWHULDO�HσHFW�RQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

7KH�*URXSâV�EXVLQHVV�DFWLYLWLHV��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�WKH�IDFWRUV�OLNHO\�WR�DσHFW�LWV�IXWXUH�
development, performance and position are set out in the Chairman’s statement. The 
ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�*URXS��LWV�FDVK�ñRZV��OLTXLGLW\�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�ERUURZLQJ�IDFLOLWLHV�
DUH�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�6WUDWHJLF�UHSRUW�DQG�WKH�'LUHFWRUâV�UHSRUW��,Q�DGGLWLRQ�QRWH����WR�WKH�
ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQFOXGHV�WKH�*URXSâV�REMHFWLYHV��SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHVVHV�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�
LWV�FDSLWDO��LWV�ðQDQFLDO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�REMHFWLYHV��GHWDLOV�RI�LWV�ðQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�
H[SRVXUHV�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�DQG�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�

7KH�QHW�OLDELOLW\�EDODQFH�VKHHW�SRVLWLRQ�DV�DW����6HSWHPEHU�������EHLQJ�WKH�*URXSâV�ðQDQFLDO�
\HDU�HQG��ZDV�æ�����������������æ�����������6XEVHTXHQW�WR�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH��WKH�
Board has been able to agree funding in the form of further share issues raising £258,813 
LQ�FDVK��H[FKDQJHG�æ�������ZRUWK�RI�VKDUHV�IRU�VHUYLFHV�UHFHLYHG�DQG�æ�������ZRUWK�RI�
VKDUHV�DV�SDUW�SD\PHQW�RI�WKH�VHFRQG�WUDQFKH�RI�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�2LO�3URGXFWLRQV��

1.  Principal accounting policies

Going concern
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The Company is reliant upon its continuing ability to manage the timing of settlement both 
of its current liabilities, many of which are overdue, and future liabilities as they arise. Future 
IXQGUDLVLQJ�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�LQ�WKH�LPPHGLDWH�WR�VKRUW�WHUP�WKHUHDIWHU���$V�VXFK��WKH�'LUHFWRUV�
LQWHQG�WR�VWUHQJWKHQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\âV�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�WKURXJK�D�FRPELQDWLRQ�RI�IXUWKHU�
fundraises in the immediate to short term and from trading activities.

The future business model is based around generating revenue through it’s subsidiary, 
Relative, as well as through its projects. The Group is already producing revenues although 
progress with some of the technologies has been slower than expected. As a result the 
%RDUG�KDV�SUHSDUHG�IRUHFDVWV�WR�UHñHFW�WKLV�DQG�WKH�DJUHHPHQWV�WKDW�KDYH�RU�DUH�H[SHFWHG�
WR�EH�HQWHUHG�LQWR���7KHVH�IRUHFDVWV�VKRZ�WKH�EXVLQHVV�EHLQJ�SURðWDEOH�DQG�FDVK�JHQHUDWLYH�
in the future.  However, achieving these forecasts will be dependent upon achieving sales 
DQG�REWDLQLQJ�VXτFLHQW�IXQGLQJ�WR�VHWWOH�H[LVWLQJ�DQG�IXWXUH�REOLJDWLRQV��6KRXOG�DQ\�RI�
these factors not deliver the funding envisaged by the Directors, then alternative sources of 
funds would be needed, any discussions for which have not been initiated. 

The Directors have concluded that the need to generate future funds from further 
fundraising and from trading activities to satisfy the settlement of its ongoing and future 
OLDELOLWLHV�UHSUHVHQWV�D�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQW\��ZKLFK�PD\�FDVW�VLJQLðFDQW�GRXEW�XSRQ�WKH�
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  Nevertheless after 
PDNLQJ�HQTXLULHV�DQG�FRQVLGHULQJ�WKLV�XQFHUWDLQW\�DQG�WKH�PHDVXUHV�WKDW�FDQ�EH�WDNHQ�WR�
mitigate the uncertainty, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and 
WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�KDYH�DGHTXDWH�UHVRXUFHV�WR�FRQWLQXH�LQ�H[LVWHQFH�IRU�WKH�IRUHVHHDEOH�
future.  For these reasons they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 
DQQXDO�UHSRUW�DQG�DFFRXQWV��7KH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�GR�QRW�LQFOXGH�DQ\�DGMXVWPHQWV�WKDW�
would result if the Group and Company was unable to continue as a going concern.

7KH�*URXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRQVROLGDWH�WKRVH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�RI�LWV�VXEVLGLDU\�
undertakings drawn up to 30 September 2013. Subsidiaries are entities over which the 
*URXS�KDV�WKH�SRZHU�WR�FRQWURO�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLQJ�SROLFLHV�VR�DV�WR�REWDLQ�EHQHðWV�
from its activities.  The Group obtains and exercises control through voting rights. 

$PRXQWV�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�VXEVLGLDULHV�KDYH�EHHQ�DGMXVWHG�ZKHUH�
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. 

7KH�WUDGLQJ�UHVXOWV�RI�VXEVLGLDULHV�DFTXLUHG�RU�GLVSRVHG�RI�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�
WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IURP�WKH�HσHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�DFTXLVLWLRQ�
RU�XS�WR�WKH�HσHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�GLVSRVDO��DV�DSSURSULDWH�

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenditure are eliminated on 
consolidation.

Revenue is recognised as the contract activity progresses.  Revenue and associated 
costs are recognised in proportion to the work completed.  Where, however, the outcome 
cannot be assessed with reasonable certainty before the contract’s conclusion, revenue is 
recognised only to the extent that the expenses recognised are recoverable. Full provisions 
DUH�PDGH�IRU�DQ\�FRQWUDFWV�WKDW�DUH�IRUHFDVW�WR�EH�ORVV�PDNLQJ�DV�VRRQ�DV�LW�LV�LGHQWLðHG��

Basis of consolidation

Revenue and attributable profit

Going Concern (continued)
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Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period on which it 
is incurred. An internally generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s development 
activity is recognised only if all the following conditions are met: 

Investment balances are initially recorded at fair value which is deemed to be cash amounts 
SDLG�RQ�DFTXLVLWLRQ��7KH\�DUH�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�DV�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�ðQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��7KH�HTXLW\�
LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�QRW�WUDGHG�RQ�D�TXRWHG�PDUNHW��KRZHYHU�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�XVH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�IURP�
WUDQVDFWLRQV�XQGHUWDNHQ�LQ�WKH�HTXLW\�RI�WKHVH�EXVLQHVVHV�WR�DVVHVV�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�
LQYHVWPHQWV�KHOG��:KHUH�QR�VXFK�RU�LQVXτFLHQW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�WUDQVDFWLRQV�KDYH�RFFXUUHG�
WKH�DVVHW�LV�KHOG�DW�FRVW�RQ�DFTXLVLWLRQ�

3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�DUH�VWDWHG�DW�FRVW�QHW�RI�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DQ\�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�
impairment. Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost less estimated residual value 
E\�HTXDO�DQQXDO�LQVWDOPHQWV�RYHU�WKHLU�H[SHFWHG�XVHIXO�OLYHV��7KH�UDWHV�JHQHUDOO\�DSSOLFDEOH�
are:

 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each end of reporting period 
and adjusted if appropriate.

*RRGZLOO�UHSUHVHQWV�WKH�H[FHVV�FRVW�RI�D�EXVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQ�RYHU�WRWDO�DFTXLVLWLRQ�GDWH�
IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�LGHQWLðDEOH�DVVHWV��OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�FRQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DFTXLUHG�

&RVW�FRPSULVHG�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV�JLYHQ��OLDELOLWLHV�DVVXPHG�DQG�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�
LVVXHV��&RQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�FRVW�DW�LWV�DFTXLVLWLRQ�GDWH�IDLU�YDOXH�
DQG��LQ�WKH�FDVH�RI�FRQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�FODVVLðHG�DV�D�ðQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\��UHPHDVXUHG�
VXEVHTXHQWO\�WKURXJK�SURðW�RU�ORVV��)RU�EXVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQV�GLUHFWO\�DWWULEXWDEOH�FRVWV�
RI�DFTXLVLWLRQ�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�DV�DQ�H[SHQVH�

Research and development

Available for sale investments

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets 

Goodwill

�������WLY�HUU\T�VY�V]LY�
[OL�WLYPVK�VM�[OL�SPJLUJL

-P_[\YLZ��Ä[[PUNZ��JVTW\[LY�
HUK�VɉJL�LX\PWTLU[!�

Internally-generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their 
useful lives. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, 
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.  

DQ�DVVHW�LV�FUHDWHG�WKDW�FDQ�EH�LGHQWLðHG��VXFK�DV�D�ZHEVLWH��
LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�DVVHW�FUHDWHG�ZLOO�JHQHUDWH�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHðWV��DQG
the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

∙ 
∙
∙
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Goodwill is not amortised and is reviewed annually for impairment.  Any impairment 
LGHQWLðHG�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�WKH�UHYLHZ�LV�FKDUJHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�
comprehensive income. 

:KHUH�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�LGHQWLðDEOH�DVVHWV��OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�FRQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�H[FHHG�WKH�IDLU�
value of consideration paid, the excess is credited in full to the consolidated statement of 
FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�RQ�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�GDWH�

([WHUQDOO\�DFTXLUHG�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�FRVW�DQG�VXEVHTXHQWO\�
amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives. The 
amortisation expense is included within the other administrative expenses line of the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets are recognised on business combinations if they are separable from the 
DFTXLUHG�HQWLW\�WR�JLYH�ULVH�WR�RWKHU�FRQWUDFWXDO�OHJDO�ULJKWV��7KH�DPRXQWV�DVFULEHG�WR�VXFK�
LQWDQJLEOHV�DUH�DUULYHG�DW�E\�XVLQJ�DSSURSULDWH�YDOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�

)RU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�DVVHVVLQJ�LPSDLUPHQW��DVVHWV�DUH�JURXSHG�LQWR�VHSDUDWHO\�LGHQWLðDEOH�
cash-generating units. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that have arisen 
from business combinations.

At each end of reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-current 
DVVHWV��WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�WKHUH�LV�DQ\�LQGLFDWLRQ�WKDW�WKRVH�DVVHWV�KDYH�VXσHUHG�DQ�
impairment loss. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Goodwill is tested 
for impairment annually. Goodwill impairment charges are not reversed.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
KLJKHU�RI�IDLU�YDOXH�DQG�YDOXH�LQ�XVH�EDVHG�RQ�DQ�LQWHUQDO�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ñRZ�HYDOXDWLRQ�

&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�FRPSULVH�FDVK�LQ�KDQG�DQG�RQ�GHPDQG�GHSRVLWV��%DQN�
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash 
PDQDJHPHQW�DUH�LQFOXGHG�DV�D�FRPSRQHQW�RI�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV��%DQN�RYHUGUDIWV�
DUH�VKRZQ�LQ�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�RQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�

Externally acquired intangible assets

Impairment of non-current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

(TXLW\�FRPSULVHV�WKH�IROORZLQJ��

Goodwill (continued)

Equity 

:OHYL�JHWP[HS represents the nominal value of issued ordinary shares and deferred shares.
:OHYL�WYLTP\T�represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of consideration 
UHFHLYHG�IRU�HTXLW\�VKDUHV��QHW�RI�H[SHQVHV�RI�WKH�VKDUH�LVVXH��

∙ 
∙
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Deferred taxation 

:OHYLZ�[V�IL�PZZ\LK�YLZLY]L represents shares to be issued in consideration for the 
DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�)('6���/,0,7�DQG�IRU�FDVK�UHFHLYHG�IRU�WKH�SXUFKDVH�RI�VKDUHV�\HW�WR�EH�
issued at the period end.
4LYNLY�YLZLY]L represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of consideration 
UHFHLYHG�IRU�HTXLW\�VKDUHV�LVVXHG�RQ�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�VXEVLGLDULHV��QHW�RI�H[SHQVHV�RI�WKH�
share issue.
*HWP[HS�YLKLTW[PVU�YLZLY]L represents the nominal value of shares repurchased by the 
Company. 
9L[HPULK�LHYUPUNZ�UHSUHVHQWV�UHWDLQHG�SURðWV�DQG�ORVVHV��

∙ 

∙

∙

∙

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised where the carrying amount of an asset or 
OLDELOLW\�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GLσHUV�IURP�LWV�WD[�EDVH��H[FHSW�IRU�GLσHUHQFHV�
arising on: 

the initial recognition of goodwill; 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business 
FRPELQDWLRQ�DQG�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ�DσHFWV�QHLWKHU�DFFRXQWLQJ�RU�WD[DEOH�SURðW��
and 
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities where the Group is able to control 
WKH�WLPLQJ�RI�WKH�UHYHUVDO�RI�WKH�GLσHUHQFH�DQG�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�GLσHUHQFH�ZLOO�QRW�
reverse in the foreseeable future.

∙ 
∙

∙

Recognition of deferred tax assets is restricted to those instances where it is probable that 
WD[DEOH�SURðW�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�DJDLQVW�ZKLFK�WKH�GLσHUHQFH�FDQ�EH�XWLOLVHG��

The amount of the asset or liability is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when 
the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are settled/(recovered). 

'HIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�RσVHW�ZKHQ�WKH�*URXS�KDV�D�OHJDOO\�HQIRUFHDEOH�ULJKW�
WR�RσVHW�FXUUHQW�WD[�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�WKH�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�UHODWH�WR�
taxes levied by the same tax authority on either: 

the same taxable Group company; or 
GLσHUHQW�*URXS�HQWLWLHV�ZKLFK�LQWHQG�HLWKHU�WR�VHWWOH�FXUUHQW�WD[�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�RQ�D�
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future 
SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�VLJQLðFDQW�DPRXQWV�RI�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�
settled or recovered. 

∙ 
∙

Financial instruments 

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ðQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�*URXSâV�VWDWHPHQW�
RI�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�ZKHQ�WKH�*URXS�EHFRPHV�D�SDUW\�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�
instrument at their fair value and thereafter at amortised cost.
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Trade payables are initially recorded at fair value and then carried at their amortised cost. 

Trade receivables are initially recorded at fair value and then carried at their amortised 
cost less any provision for doubtful debts. Trade receivables due in more than one year are 
discounted to their present value. 

Impairment provisions are recognised when there is objective evidence (such as 
VLJQLðFDQW�ðQDQFLDO�GLτFXOWLHV�RQ�WKH�SDUW�RI�WKH�FRXQWHUSDUW\�RU�GHIDXOW�RU�VLJQLðFDQW�
delay in payment) that the Group will be unable to collect all of the amounts due under 
WKH�WHUPV�UHFHLYDEOH��WKH�DPRXQW�RI�VXFK�D�SURYLVLRQ�EHLQJ�WKH�GLσHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�QHW�
FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�DQG�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�IXWXUH�H[SHFWHG�FDVK�ñRZV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�
the impaired receivable. For trade receivables, which are reported net, such provisions 
are reported in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised within 
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. On 
FRQðUPDWLRQ�WKDW�WKH�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOH�ZLOO�QRW�EH�FROOHFWDEOH��WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�WKH�
DVVHW�LV�ZULWWHQ�Rσ�DJDLQVW�WKH�DVVRFLDWHG�SURYLVLRQ�

Contingent consideration is recorded at fair value, being the Directors best estimate of 
amounts expected to be payable. Non-current consideration is held at discounted fair 
YDOXH��&RQWLQJHQW�&RQVLGHUDWLRQ�SD\DEOH�VROHO\�LQ�VKDUHV�DW�D�ð[HG�SULFH�SHU�VKDUH�DUH�
UHFRUGHG�LQ�HTXLW\�ZKHQ�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ�HQWHUHG�LQWR�DW�WKH�OHYHO�RI�WRWDO�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKDW�
the Directors expect to be payable. Contingent consideration which is payable in either 
FDVK�RU�VKDUHV�RU�ZKHUH�WKH�SULFH�RI�VKDUHV�WR�EH�LVVXHG�LV�QRW�ð[HG�DUH�KHOG�DV�FXUUHQW�RU�
non-current payables as appropriate. 

(TXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�*URXS�DUH�UHFRUGHG�DV�WKH�SURFHHGV�UHFHLYHG��QHW�RI�
direct costs. 

The proceeds received on issue of the Company’s convertible debt are allocated into their 
OLDELOLW\�DQG�HTXLW\�FRPSRQHQWV�DQG�SUHVHQWHG�VHSDUDWHO\�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ðQDQFLDO�
SRVLWLRQ��7KH�DPRXQW�LQLWLDOO\�DWWULEXWHG�WR�WKH�GHEW�FRPSRQHQW�HTXDOV�WKH�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�
ñRZV�XVLQJ�D�PDUNHW�UDWH�RI�LQWHUHVW�WKDW�ZRXOG�EH�SD\DEOH�RQ�D�VLPLODU�GHEW�LQVWUXPHQW�WKDW�
did not include an option to convert.

7KH�GLσHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�QHW�SURFHHGV�RI�WKH�FRQYHUWLEOH�GHEW�DQG�WKH�DPRXQW�DOORFDWHG�
to the debt component is credited to current liabilities until the debt is converted or repaid. 
,W�LV�VKRZQ�XQGHU�RWKHU�ðQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV��2Q�FRQYHUVLRQ��WKH�GHEW�DQG�HTXLW\�HOHPHQWV�DUH�
credited to share capital and share premium as appropriate. Transaction costs that relate 
WR�WKH�LVVXH�RI�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW�DUH�DOORFDWHG�WR�WKH�OLDELOLW\�DQG�HTXLW\�FRPSRQHQWV�RI�WKH�
instrument in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

Trade payables

Contingent consideration

Equity instruments 

Convertible debt

Trade receivables



Name Mandatory
effective date 'HVFULSWLRQ�DQG�JXLGDQFH

To be adopted
 in the year
�HQGLQJ

IFRS13 – Fair 
Value 

Measurement
1 January 

2013
The standard establishes a single frame-
work for measuring fair value when 
UHTXLUHG�E\�RWKHU�VWDQGDUGV�

30 September 
2014

IFRS 10 – 
Consolidated 

Financial 
Statements

1 January 
2014

The standard addresses the concept 
of control as the determining factor 
in whether or not an entity should be 
LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ÀQDQFLDO�
statements of the parent company. 

This standard must be applied 
concurrently with:
IFRS 11 – joint arrangements
IFRS 12 – Disclosure of interests in other 
entities
,$6����5HYLVHG�²�VHSDUDWH�ÀQDQFLDO�
statements 
IAS 28 Revised – investments in 
associates and joint ventures

30 September 
2014
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When share options are awarded, the fair value of the options at the date of grant is 
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the vesting 
SHULRG��1RQ�PDUNHW�FRQGLWLRQV�DUH�WDNHQ�LQWR�DFFRXQW�E\�DGMXVWLQJ�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�HTXLW\�
instruments expected to vest at each end of reporting period so that, ultimately, the 
cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of options 
that eventually vest. Market conditions are factored into the fair value of the options 
JUDQWHG��$V�ORQJ�DV�DOO�RWKHU�YHVWLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV�DUH�VDWLVðHG��D�FKDUJH�LV�PDGH�LUUHVSHFWLYH�
RI�ZKHWKHU�WKH�PDUNHW�YHVWLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV�DUH�VDWLVðHG��7KH�FXPXODWLYH�H[SHQVH�LV�QRW�
adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

:KHUH�WKH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�RSWLRQV�DUH�PRGLðHG�EHIRUH�WKH\�YHVW��WKH�LQFUHDVH�
LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�RSWLRQV��PHDVXUHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�EHIRUH�DQG�DIWHU�WKH�PRGLðFDWLRQ��LV�
also charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the remaining 
vesting period. 

:KHUH�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�JUDQWHG�WR�SHUVRQV�RWKHU�WKDQ�HPSOR\HHV��WKH�IXOO�FRVW�RI�
services provided is recognised as a current liability and as a charge in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income. When shares are issued to settle the obligation, 
WKH�OLDELOLW\�LV�H[WLQJXLVKHG�DQG�WKH�VKDUH�LVVXH�LV�UHñHFWHG�LQ�HTXLW\�DV�DQ�LVVXH�RI�VKDUH�
capital.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received net of attributable transaction costs 
are credited to share capital, and where appropriate share premium. 

:[HUKHYKZ�PZZ\LK�I`�[OL�0U[LYUH[PVUHS�(JJV\U[PUN�:[HUKHYKZ�)VHYK��0(:)��UV[�LɈLJ[P]L�
for the current year and not adopted by the Group.

The following standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB. They become 
HσHFWLYH�DIWHU�WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU�DQG�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�HDUO\�DGRSWHG�E\�WKH�*URXS�

Share based payments
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Share based payments (continued)

Going concern

Available for sale investments

Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles

Critical judgements and estimates 
in applying the Group’s accounting policies

2.  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of 
     estimation uncertainty

Management have considered that the Group remains a going concern.  The going concern 
assumption is discussed further in note 1.

Management have considered the carrying value of available for sale investments which are 
held at cost or fair value. The carrying value of investments is discussed further in note 13.

7KH�*URXS�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�WHVW��RQ�DQ�DQQXDO�EDVLV��ZKHWKHU�JRRGZLOO�KDV�VXσHUHG�DQ\�
impairment. Other intangible assets are tested for impairment if there are any indicators of 
impairment during the period. The recoverable amount of goodwill and other intangibles 
LV�GHWHUPLQHG�EDVHG�RQ�YDOXH�LQ�XVH�FDOFXODWLRQV��7KH�XVH�RI�WKLV�PHWKRG�UHTXLUHV�WKH�
HVWLPDWLRQ�RI�IXWXUH�FDVK�ñRZV�DQG�WKH�FKRLFH�RI�D�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�LQ�RUGHU�WR�FDOFXODWH�WKH�
SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�FDVK�ñRZV��$FWXDO�RXWFRPHV�PD\�YDU\��0RUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LQFOXGLQJ�
carrying values is included in note 11.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 
1, management has made the following judgements and estimates that have the most 
VLJQLðFDQW�HσHFW�RQ�WKH�DPRXQWV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��DSDUW�IURP�WKRVH�
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�UHTXLUHV�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�PDNH�HVWLPDWHV�
DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�WKDW�DσHFW�WKH�UHSRUWHG�DPRXQWV�RI�UHYHQXHV��H[SHQVHV��DVVHWV�DQG�
OLDELOLWLHV��DQG�WKH�GLVFORVXUH�RI�FRQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV���
If in the future such estimates and assumptions which are based on management’s best 
MXGJHPHQW�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�GHYLDWH�IURP�WKH�DFWXDO�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��
WKH�RULJLQDO�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�ZLOO�EH�PRGLðHG�DV�DSSURSULDWH�LQ�WKH�\HDU�LQ�ZKLFK�
WKH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�FKDQJH���:KHUH�QHFHVVDU\��WKH�FRPSDUDWLYHV�KDYH�EHHQ�UHFODVVLðHG�RU�
extended from the previously reported results to take into account presentational changes.

7KH�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�*URXSâV�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LV�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�PDWHULDO�

There are a number of other standards that have been drafted, primarily as a result of the 
IASB improvement programme, that have yet to be endorsed by the EU. These are not 
listed here as they have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Directors have reviewed 
WKHVH�VWDQGDUGV�DQG�GR�QRW�EHOLHYH�WKDW�WKH�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�*URXSâV�ðQDQFLDO�
statements is, or will be, material.
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Determination of fair values of intangible
assets acquired in business combinations

Contingent consideration

Warrant and share options issued

3.  Segment analysis

7KH�IDLU�YDOXHV�RI�FXVWRPHU�UHODWLRQVKLSV�DFTXLUHG�LQ�WKH�EXVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQ�DUH�EDVHG�
XSRQ�WKH�HVWLPDWHG�FDVK�ñRZV�DULVLQJ�IURP�WKDW�UHODWLRQVKLS�RYHU�WKH�H[SHFWHG�OLIH�RI�WKH�
customer.

$V�SDUW�RI�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�2LO�3URGXFWLRQV�/LPLWHG�DQG�)('6���/,0,7�WKH�YHQGRUV�DUH�
HQWLWOHG�WR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�GHSHQGHQW�XSRQ�WKH�DFTXLUHG�EXVLQHVVHV�SHUIRUPDQFH�LQ�WKH�
SHULRG�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�DFTXLVLWLRQ��7KH�'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�HVWLPDWHG�WKDW�WKH�JURXS�ZLOO�PHHW�
these performance targets in full and has provided accordingly the maximum consideration 
amount payable. These estimates are updated as actual levels of contingent consideration 
are either agreed or better information about the likely amounts payable becomes available. 

Where warrants and share options have been issued the fair value of the share options was 
estimated at the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account the 
terms and conditions upon which they were granted. The charge for these payments is then 
recognised in line with the vesting period. Actual outcomes may vary. More information 
including the inputs used for the valuation is included in note 21. 

7KH�%RDUG�KDYH�UHYLHZHG�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�XQGHU�,)56��6HJPHQWDO�5HSRUWLQJ�DQG�KDYH�
FRQFOXGHG�WKDW��ZLWK�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�2LO�3URGXFWLRQV�/LPLWHG��D�VHFRQG�UHSRUWDEOH�
segment was created in the business. 

The accounting policy for identifying segments is based on the internal management 
reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the senior management team. 

)ROORZLQJ�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�2LO�3URGXFWLRQV�LQ�$XJXVW�������WKH�*URXS�QRZ�KDV�WZR�PDLQ�
reportable segments:

Milestone – Milestone seeks to generate revenue from the exploitation of intellectual 
property and licenses held. The operational expenditure incurred on behalf of the Group is 
also managed within this segment.
Oil Productions – Oil Productions generates revenue from multiplatform digital production 
services. 

∙ 

∙

Oil Productions is managed separately with all other business activities falling under 
WKH�+HDG�2τFH��8QLIRUP�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DUH�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�HQWLUH�*URXS��7KHVH�DUH�
GHVFULEHG�LQ�QRWH���RI�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
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3.  Segment analysis (continued)

æ�������RI�UHYHQXHV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�2LO�3URGXFWLRQV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�DUH�JHQHUDWHG�IURP�VDOHV�WR�RQH�
customer (2012: £281,238).

Year to 30 September 2013 Milestone Oil Productions Total
£ £ £

Revenue to External Customers 6,200 146,173 152,373

Finance income 17 - 17
Finance expense (104,745) (3,487) (108,232)
Depreciation & Amortisation (37,814) - (37,814)

Segment loss before tax (610,309) (370,261) (980,570)

Year to 30 September 2012
Milestone Oil Productions Total

£ £ £

Revenue to External Customers - 776,391 776,391

Finance income 88 6 94
Finance expense (165,237) (4,285) (169,522)
Depreciation & Amortisation (44,511) (212,561) (257,072)

Segment loss before tax (1,052,896) (408,324) (1,461,220)

As at 30 September 2013 Milestone Oil Productions Total
£ £ £

Adjustments to carrying value of available for 
sale investments (23,160) - (23,160)
Realised gain on sale of available for sale 
ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV (440,605) - (440,605)
Impairment of Goodwill - (313,040) (313,040)

7RWDO�6HJPHQW�$VVHWV 598,038 114,006 712,044

7RWDO�6HJPHQW�/LDELOLWLHV (1,043,839) (686,115) (1,729,954)

As at 30 September 2012 Milestone Oil Productions Total
£ £ £

Adjustments to carrying value of available for 
sale investments (note 13) 808,889 -      808,889

7RWDO�6HJPHQW�$VVHWV 1,201,231 438,428 1,639,659

7RWDO�6HJPHQW�/LDELOLWLHV (1,355,796) (392,209) (1,748,005)



33

4.  Revenue

5HYHQXH�LQ�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�æ���������������æ����������

5.  Expenses by Nature

The following amounts are included within administrative expenses: 

6.  Directors and staff

6WDσ�FRVWV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��LQFOXGLQJ�'LUHFWRUV��ZHUH�DV�IROORZV�

7KH�DYHUDJH�QXPEHU�RI�VWDσ�RI�WKH�*URXS�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�DV�IROORZV�

2013 2012
£ £

$XGLWRUV·�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�
)HHV�SD\DEOH�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�DXGLWRU�

)RU�WKH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�DQQXDO�DFFRXQWV 21,100 19,500
Fees for taxation compliance services 3,000 3,000

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment:
3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW - 8,293
Software Licenses 37,814 36,218
Customer relationships - 212,561
Impairment of goodwill 313,040 -

Staff costs (note 6) 676,473 716,410
Grant of share options - 32,909

2013 2012
£ £

Wages and salaries 610,775 639,352
Social security costs 65,698 77,058

676,473 716,410   

2013 2012
no. no.

Sales and distribution 8 8
Directors and administration 8 6

16 14
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Remuneration in respect of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the 
Group, and other key management personnel was as follows:

The emoluments accruing to each of the Director’s during the year is shown in the table above. 
2I�WKHVH�DPRXQWV�DFFUXHG�æ��������GXH�WR�'LUHFWRUV�DW�WKH�\HDU�HQG�ZDV�XQSDLG��'HWDLOV�RI�WKH�
total amounts outstanding to the Directors at the period end are detailed in note 15.

7.  Finance Expenses

2013 2012
£ £

Deborah White 120,000 120,000
Jim Brown 33,825 6,750
Anthony Sanders 114,000 89,885
David Hill 24,000 24,000
Guy van Zwanenberg - 22,275
Kevin Everett 12,000 -

Total Directors emoluments 303,825 262,910

Remuneration for additional key management - 61,778
Employers national insurance and share option 
charges for key management personnel (including directors) 32,015 54,819

335,840 379,507

2013 2012
£ £

Trade Interest 2,789 5,035
Loan Interest 85,443 103,487
Discounting of non-current liability in year 20,000 61,000

108,232 169,522

6.  Directors and staff (continued)
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8.  Tax on loss on ordinary activities

'HIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�RI�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�æ����P��*URXS��KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV�DV�WKHUH�LV�FXUUHQWO\�LQVXτFLHQW�HYLGHQFH�WR�VXJJHVW�WKDW�DQ\�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW�
ZRXOG�EH�UHFRYHUDEOH��7KH�*URXS�KDV�XQXWLOLVHG�WD[�ORVVHV�RI�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�æ����P�ZKLFK�
ZRXOG�EH�DYDLODEOH�WR�FDUU\�IRUZDUG�DJDLQVW�IXWXUH�SURðWV�IURP�WKH�VDPH�DFWLYLW\��VXEMHFW�WR�
agreement by HM Revenue & Customs.

2013 2012
£ £

Loss from operations before tax (980,570) (1,461,220)

Loss from operations at the standard rate of 
corporation tax in the UK of 23.5% (2012: 25%) (230,434) (365,305)

Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 86,444 66,994
Adjustment to deferred consideration not taxable (65,800) (11,261)
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation - 2,073

Unutilised tax losses and other deductions 209,790 307,499

Total current tax charge in the year - -

Release of deferred tax provision (note 18) - (65,590)

Total tax credit / charge in the year - (65,590)

9.  Dividend

No dividends have been paid or proposed in the year (2012: £nil).

10.  Loss per Share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year. The 
calculation of diluted loss per share is based on the basic loss per share, adjusted to allow 
IRU�WKH�LVVXH�RI�VKDUHV�DQG�WKH�SRVW�WD[�HσHFW�RI�GLYLGHQGV�DQG�LQWHUHVW��RQ�WKH�DVVXPHG�
conversion of all other dilutive options and other potential ordinary shares.
 
7KHUH�ZHUH������������VKDUH�RSWLRQV�RXWVWDQGLQJ�DW�WKH�\HDU�HQG���������������������+RZHYHU��
WKH�ðJXUHV�IRU������DQG������KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�DGMXVWHG�WR�UHñHFW�FRQYHUVLRQ�RI�WKHVH�VKDUH�
RSWLRQV�DV�WKH�HσHFWV�ZRXOG�EH�DQWL�GLOXWLYH�



Milestone Group PLC Report and Financial Statements year ended 30 September 2013            36

11.  Intangible Assets

Since the period end, the Company has settled in shares the remainder of the phase 2 
consideration with the vendors of Oil Productions Ltd. There is no phase 3 consideration 
payable in accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement.

Current estimates of useful economic lives of intangible assets other than goodwill are as 
follows:

 Software licenses   5 years
 Customer relationships   1 year

2013 2012

Loss
£

:HLJKWHG�
DYHUDJH�

number of 
shares 

Per share
Amount

Pence
Loss

£

:HLJKWHG�
DYHUDJH�

number of 
shares 

Per share
Amount

Pence

Basic and 
diluted loss per 
share 
attributable to 
shareholders (980,570) 402,324,052 (0.24) (1,395,630) 329,982,605 (0.42)

10.  Loss per Share (continued)

Software
licenses Goodwill

Customer
relationships Total

£ £ £ £
Cost
Balance as at 1 October 2011 189,073 407,987 242,927 839,987
Balance as at 1 October 2012 189,073 407,987 242,927 839,987
Balance as at 30 September 2013 189,073 407,987 242,927 839,987

Amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1 October 2011 20,500 - 30,366 50,866
Amortisation charged in the year 36,218 - 212,561 248,779
Balance as at 1 October 2012 56,718 - 242,927 299,645

Amortisation charged in the year 37,814 - - 37,814
Impairment charged in year - 313,040 - 313,040
Balance at 30 September 2013 94,532 313,040 - 650,499

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH
As at 30 September 2013 94,541 94,947 - 189,488
As at 30 September 2012 132,355 407,987 - 540,342

No intangible assets are internally generated.

*RRGZLOO�DFTXLUHG�LQ�D�EXVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQ�LV�DOORFDWHG��DW�DFTXLVLWLRQ��WR�WKH�FDVK�JHQHUDWLQJ�
XQLWV��&*8V��WKDW�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�EHQHðW�IURP�WKDW�EXVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQ��

7KH�*RRGZLOO�UHFRUGHG�DOO�UHODWHV�WR�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�2LO�3URGXFWLRQV�/LPLWHG�LQ�������
Management have concluded that this represents one CGU.



Goodwill is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment. To the extent that the 
carrying value of the cash-generating unit exceeds the value-in-use, determined from 
HVWLPDWHG�GLVFRXQWHG�IXWXUH�QHW�FDVK�ñRZV��JRRGZLOO�LV�ZULWWHQ�GRZQ�WR�WKH�YDOXH�LQ�XVH�
and an impairment charge is recognised.

7KH�NH\�DVVXPSWLRQV�IRU�WKH�YDOXH�LQ�XVH�FDOFXODWLRQ�XVLQJ�SURMHFWHG�FDVK�ñRZV�EDVHG�
on forecasts approved by management, as projected over the estimated useful life of 
goodwill, are those regarding the discount rates and growth rates during the period. 
$�JURZWK�UDWH�RI����ZDV�XVHG�LQ�WKH�FDOFXODWLRQ�EHLQJ�EDVHG�XSRQ�WKH�ORQJ�WHUP�8.�
JURZWK�UDWH�DQG�KDV�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�SHULRG�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�IRUHFDVWV�DSSURYHG�E\�
PDQDJHPHQW��$�SUH�WD[�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�RI������EHLQJ�DQ�HVWLPDWH�RI�WKH�*URXSâV�ZHLJKWHG�
average cost of capital, was used in the value-in-use calculation. 

The review suggested that the Goodwill in Oil Productions has been impaired on a 
YDOXH�LQ�XVH�EDVLV�DQG�WKHUHIRUH�DQ�LPSDLUPHQW�FKDUJH�RI�æ��������KDV�EHHQ�UHFRJQLVHG�
in the statement of comprehensive income (2012: nil). 

All other impairment review sensitivity analyses indicated that no reasonably foreseeable 
change in key assumptions would give rise to further impairment charges. Were the 
GLVFRXQW�UDWH�WR�LQFUHDVH�WR�����WKHQ�WKLV�ZRXOG�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�EHLQJ�
impaired by a further £30,000.

Subsidiaries as at 30 September 2013 were:
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Oil Productions Limited 
OnSide Now Limited, dormant
Nexstar League Limited, dormant

∙ 
∙
∙

12.  Property, plant and equipment
Fixtures,

Fittings and
(TXLSPHQW Total

£ £
Cost
At 1 October 2011 161,223 161,223
Disposals (14,232) (14,232)
At 30 September 2012 146,991 146,991

At 1 October 2012 146,991 146,991
Additions / Disposals - -
At 30 September 2013 146,991 146,991

Depreciation
At 1 October 2011 152,930 152,930
Charge for year 8,293 8,293
Disposals (14,232) (14,232)
At 30 September 2012 146,991 146,991

At 1 October 2012 146,991 146,991
Charge for year / Disposals - -
At 30 September 2013 146,991 146,991

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH
At 30 September 2013 - -
At 30 September 2012 - -
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13.  Available for sale investments

Level 2 Total
£ £

Cost
At 1 October 2011 162,824 162,824
Adjustment to fair value 808,889 808,889
At 30 September 2012 971,713 971,713

At 1 October 2012 971,713 971,713
Adjustment to fair value (23,160) (23,160)
Disposals (493,790) (493,790)
At 30 September 2013 454,763 454,763

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH
At 30 September 2013 454,763   454,763
At 30 September 2012 971,713 971,713

&DWHJRULVDWLRQ�ZLWKLQ�WKH�,)56���IDLU�YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\�KDV�EHHQ�GHWHUPLQHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI
WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�WKDW�LV�VLJQLðFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�WKH�UHOHYDQW�DVVHW
as follows: 

/HYHO���ò�YDOXHG�XVLQJ�TXRWHG�SULFHV�LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV�IRU�LGHQWLFDO�DVVHWV
/HYHO���ò�YDOXHG�E\�UHIHUHQFH�WR�YDOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�XVLQJ�REVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV�RWKHU�WKDQ�
TXRWHG�SULFHV�LQFOXGHG�ZLWKLQ�/HYHO���
/HYHO���ò�YDOXHG�E\�UHIHUHQFH�WR�YDOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�XVLQJ�LQSXWV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�EDVHG�RQ�
observable market data.

∙ 
∙

∙

During the period, the Directors have considered the information, including market transactions 
XQGHUWDNHQ�E\�WKH�FRPSDQLHV�ZLWK�WKLUG�SDUWLHV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKHLU�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV��UHODWLQJ�
to the fair value of the Group’s available for sale investments. The fair value of all available for 
sale investments have been measured in accordance with level 2 of the hierarchy. There are no 
investments in level 1 or 3.  The Directors have concluded that the fair value of the available for 
VDOH�LQYHVWPHQWV�LV�LQ�H[FHVV�RI�FRVW��7KLV�LQFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�*URXSâV�KROGLQJ�KDV�EHHQ�UHñHFWHG�
through the other comprehensive income. 

In considering the carrying value of the available for sale investments, the Directors note that 
third parties have continued to invest in the two businesses above since
WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�DW�D�SULFH�HTXDO�WR�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�LQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
at the year-end.  

14.  Trade and other receivables
2013 2012

£ £
Trade receivables 1,800 26,215
Other receivables 48,443 45,525
Prepayments and accrued income 485 15,455

50,728 87,195



,QFOXGHG�LQ�SD\DEOHV�DQG�DFFUXDOV�DUH�DPRXQWV�RI�æ��������DQG�æ���������������æ��������DQG�
æ�������UHODWLQJ�WR�XQSDLG�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�WR�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�LQ�RτFH�DW�WKH�\HDU�HQG��7KLV�KDV�EHHQ�
accrued in accordance with the payments agreed between the Company and Directors. 

2Q����$XJXVW�������WKH�*URXS�DFTXLUHG������RI�WKH�YRWLQJ�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�RI�2LO�
3URGXFWLRQV�/LPLWHG��&RQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�æ��������ZDV�GLVFRXQWHG�DW������$W�
���6HSWHPEHU������WKLV�DPRXQWHG�WR�D�WRWDO�RI�æ���������6LQFH�WKDW�GDWH��WKLV�IXUWKHU�
FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�UHGXFHG�WR�æ��������ZKLFK�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�DQG�KDV�EHHQ�
VHWWOHG�WKURXJK�WKH�LVVXH�RI�VKDUHV�SRVW�\HDU�HQG��7KH�UHPDLQLQJ�OLDELOLW\�KDV�EHHQ�ZULWWHQ�Rσ��
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7UDGH�UHFHLYDEOH�GD\V�DW�WKH�\HDU�HQG�ZHUH���GD\V�����������GD\V����1R�LQWHUHVW�LV�FKDUJHG�RQ�
receivables within the agreed credit terms. Thereafter, interest may be charged.

$Q�DOORZDQFH�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW�LV�PDGH�ZKHUH�WKHUH�LV�DQ�LGHQWLðHG�HYHQW�ZKLFK��EDVHG�RQ�
previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the outstanding amount. 
7KH�*URXS�SURYLGHV��LQ�IXOO��IRU�DQ\�GHEWV�LW�EHOLHYHV�KDYH�EHFRPH�QRQ�UHFRYHUDEOH��7KH�ðJXUHV�
VKRZQ�DERYH�DUH�DIWHU�GHGXFWLQJ�VSHFLðF�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�EDG�DQG�GRXEWIXO�GHEWV�RI�QLO��������QLO���
No amounts included within trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered in more 
than one year (2012: nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of 
receivable set out above. The carrying value at the year end for each class of assets is deemed 
by the Directors to be the same as the fair value.

The ageing of trade receivables that have not been provided for are:

2013 2012
£ £

Not yet due
0 - 29 days 1,800 26,215
Overdue
30 - 59 days - -

1,800 26,215

15.  Trade and other payables

2013 2012
£ £

Trade payables 406,049 407,777
Other payables 169,523 250,989
Taxation and social security 207,708 168,576
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost 40,000 40,000
Accruals and deferred income 435,737 298,549

1,259,017 1,165,891
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2013 2012
£ £

Interest bearing loans 470,937 422,114
470,937 422,114
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17.  Non-current liabilities

18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

2Q����$XJXVW�������WKH�*URXS�DFTXLUHG������RI�WKH�YRWLQJ�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�RI�2LO�
3URGXFWLRQV�/LPLWHG��&RQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�æ��������ZDV�GLVFRXQWHG�DW������
$W����6HSWHPEHU������WKLV�DPRXQWHG�WR�D�WRWDO�RI�æ���������SDUWO\�KHOG�DV�D�FXUUHQW�
liability with other payables. Since that date, this further consideration has been 
UHGXFHG�WR�æ��������ZKLFK�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�DQG�KDV�EHHQ�VHWWOHG�WKURXJK�
WKH�LVVXH�RI�VKDUHV�SRVW�\HDU�HQG��7KH�UHPDLQLQJ�OLDELOLW\�KDV�EHHQ�ZULWWHQ�Rσ��

'HIHUUHG�WD[�LV�FDOFXODWHG�LQ�IXOO�RQ�WHPSRUDU\�GLσHUHQFHV�XQGHU�WKH�OLDELOLW\�PHWKRG�
XVLQJ�D�UDWH�RI������������������5HFRJQLVHG�GHIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLWLHV�IRU������DUH�QLO�
(2012: nil).

$�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW�RI�æ����P��DULVLQJ�SULQFLSDOO\�IURP�ORVVHV�LQ�WKH�*URXS��KDV�QRW�
EHHQ�UHFRJQLVHG��������æ����P����7KHVH�ORVVHV�FDQ�EH�RσVHW�DJDLQVW�IXWXUH�WUDGLQJ�
SURðWV�JHQHUDWHG��7KH�'LUHFWRUV�EHOLHYH�DW�WKLV�VWDJH�WKDW�LW�LV�SUXGHQW�QRW�WR�UHFRJQLVH�
WKH�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW�ZLWKLQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

7KH�*URXSâV�ðQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�FRPSULVH�FDVK��LQFOXGLQJ�VKRUW�WHUP�GHSRVLWV��WUDGH�
DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV��VKRUW�WHUP�ORDQ�ðQDQFLQJ�DQG�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�WKDW�
DULVH�GLUHFWO\�IURP�LWV�RSHUDWLRQV��7KH�PDLQ�ULVNV�DULVLQJ�IURP�WKH�*URXSâV�ðQDQFLDO�
LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN��FUHGLW�ULVN�DQG�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN��7KH�%RDUG�KDV�UHYLHZHG�
and agreed policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised 
EHORZ��7KH�*URXS�KDV�QR�ðQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�RWKHU�WKDQ�DYDLODEOH�WR�VDOH�LQYHVWPHQWV��
WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�DQG�FDVK�DW�EDQN��7KH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�YDOXHV�IRU�WKH�
ðQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�QRW�PDWHULDOO\�GLσHUHQW�IURP�WKHLU�IDLU�YDOXHV�

Financial risk factors

16. Interest bearing loans and borrowings - due within one 

/RDQ�EDODQFHV�DUH�XQVHFXUHG�DQG�KDYH�QR�ð[HG�UHSD\PHQW�VFKHGXOH�

The interest charge in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year was 
æ���������������æ����������

2013 2012
£ £

Contingent consideration - 160,000
- 160,000

19. Financial instruments and risk management
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7KH�*URXS�ðQDQFHV�LWV�RSHUDWLRQV�DW�SUHVHQW�WKURXJK�IXQGV�UDLVHG�RQ�VKDUH�SODFLQJV�
and loan facilities provided by individuals. The Group manages its exposure to interest 
UDWH�ñXFWXDWLRQV�E\�DJUHHLQJ�ð[HG�LQWHUHVW�FKDUJH�WHUPV�RQ�ERUURZLQJV�WR�UHGXFH�WKH�
LPSDFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ñXFWXDWLRQV�

7KH�*URXSâV�SULQFLSDO�HTXLW\�ULVN�UHODWHV�WR�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�LWV�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�
LQYHVWPHQWV�ZKLFK�DUH�FDUULHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��7KH�
XQGHUO\LQJ�LQYHVWPHQWV�DUH�LQ�XQTXRWHG�HQWLWLHV�DQG�WKH�*URXS�PRQLWRUV�LWV�SRWHQWLDO�
H[SRVXUH�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�YDOXH�RI�WKH�HTXLW\�LQYHVWPHQW�KHOG�E\�UHFHLYLQJ�UHJXODU�
updates of the performance and plans from the companies in which it has invested.

The Group does not operate in overseas markets and is not subject to exposures 
on transactions undertaken during the year. The Group’s exposure to exchange rate 
ñXFWXDWLRQV�LV�WKHUHIRUH�QRW�VLJQLðFDQW�

7KH�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH�RI�WKH�*URXS�FRQVLVWV�RI�VKRUW�WHUP�ORDQ�ðQDQFLQJ�SURYLGHG�E\�
LQGLYLGXDO�YHQGRUV�DQG�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUVâ�HTXLW\�FRPSULVLQJ�LVVXHG�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�DQG�
reserves.  The capital structure of the Group is reviewed on an ongoing basis with 
UHIHUHQFH�WR�WKH�FRVWV�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�HDFK�HOHPHQW�RI�FDSLWDO��IXWXUH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�
*URXS��ñH[LELOLW\�RI�FDSLWDO�WR�EH�GUDZQ�GRZQ�DQG�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�IXUWKHU�FDSLWDO�VKRXOG�LW�
EH�UHTXLUHG��

7KH�*URXS�KDG�FXUUHQW�ORDQ�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�æ��������DW�WKH�\HDU�HQG��������æ���������

Credit risk

Interest rate risk

Equity Risk

Currency risk

Capital risk management

7KH�*URXSâV�SULQFLSDO�ðQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�DVVHWV��EDQN�EDODQFHV��
cash and trade and other receivables.  The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable 
to its trade receivables.  As far as possible the Group operates to ensure that the 
payment terms of customers are matched to the Group’s own contractual obligations 
on development. Due to their nature, the Directors do not deem the available for sale 
assets to be exposed to high credit risk.

Liquidity risk

7KH�*URXS�VHHNV�WR�PDQDJH�ðQDQFLDO�ULVN�WR�HQVXUH�VXτFLHQW�OLTXLGLW\�LV�DYDLODEOH�WR�
PHHW�IRUHVHHDEOH�QHHGV�DQG�WR�LQYHVW�FDVK�DVVHWV�VDIHO\�DQG�SURðWDEO\��7KH�*URXSâV�
SROLF\�LV�WR�HQVXUH�WKHUH�DUH�VXτFLHQW�FDVK�UHVHUYHV�WR�PHHW�OLDELOLWLHV�GXULQJ�VXFK�
SHULRGV��7KHVH�DUH�LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQWR�UROOLQJ�WZHOYH�PRQWK�*URXS�FDVK�ñRZ�IRUHFDVWV��
ZKLFK�DUH�UHYLHZHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�PRQWKO\��DQG�WKH�FDVK�ñRZV�DUH�PRQLWRUHG�DW�
*URXS�OHYHO�E\�ZHHNO\�FDVK�UHSRUWV�IURP�HDFK�RSHUDWLQJ�HQWLW\��6KRUW�WHUP�ñH[LELOLW\�
is provided through the availability of cash facilities. Long term funding is secured 
through issues of share capital and convertible loan instruments. 
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Liability maturity analysis

2013 Repayable on 
demand or within 

1 month

Between 
1 month and 

6 months

Between 
6 months and 

1 year
£ £ £

Trade payables 406,049 - -
Other trade payables 18,442 80,479 -
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost - 40,000 -
Accruals and deferred income - 435,737 -
Interest bearing loans - 470,937 -

2012
Within 

1 month

Between 
1 month and 

6 months

Between 
6 months and 

1 year
£ £ £

Trade payables 407,777 - -
Other trade payables 23,675 201,980 -
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost - 40,000 -
Accruals and deferred income 6,750 291,799 -
Interest bearing loans - 422,114 -

Within interest bearing loan balances at the year end is a £160,000 convertible loan (2012: 
£160,000). The terms of the conversion are that the lender can convert the outstanding balance 
DW�DQ\�SRLQW�LQWR�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�RI�WKH�*URXS�DW�D�GLVFRXQW�RI�PDUNHW�SULFH�RI������������������

The Directors reviewed the terms of the arrangements and noted that they are likely to 
always be converted. As a result the Directors calculated the fair value of this conversion and 
UHFRJQLVHG�LW�LQ�IXOO�RQ�LQFHSWLRQ�RI�WKH�DJUHHPHQW�LQ�������$�FKDUJH�RI�æ�������ZDV�UHFRJQLVHG�
in respect of this charge during the inception year. 

,QWHUHVW�LV�SD\DEOH�RQ�WKH�FRQYHUWLEOH�ORDQ�EDODQFHV�DW�D�UDWH�RI������,QWHUHVW�RQ�DFFUXHG�
EDODQFHV�LV�æ�������LQ�WKH�\HDU��������æ����������1R�LQWHUHVW�LV�SD\DEOH�RQ�WKH�RWKHU�ORDQ�
balances. 

$OO�ORDQ�EDODQFHV�DQG�DVVRFLDWHG�ðQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�GXH�ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU�RI�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�
reporting period.

Interest rate and liquidity risk

7KH�*URXSâV�ðQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�UHSUHVHQWHG�WUDGH�SD\DEOHV�DQG�VKRUW�WHUP�ORDQ�ðQDQFLQJ�DW�WKH�
year end. No interest was payable on the trade and other payables outstanding. Interest was 
SD\DEOH�RQ�ORDQ�EDODQFHV�RI������7KH�*URXSâV�ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO�FRPPLWPHQWV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�RQ�
an ongoing basis with reference to the dates when liabilities are to be repaid.

,QWHUHVW�RQ�RYHUGUDIW�EDODQFHV�LV�FKDUJHG�DW�����
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20.   Share Capital

2Q����2FWREHU������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH���������RUGLQDU\�
shares of 0.1p each for a cash consideration of £5,000. 

On 23 October 2012 the Company announced that it had agreed to issue 3,000,000 ordinary 
shares of 0.1p each for settlement of outstanding trade payables of £30,000. 

2Q����1RYHPEHU������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH������������RUGLQDU\�
shares of 0.1p each for a cash consideration of £250,000. 

2Q����-DQXDU\������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH�����������RUGLQDU\�
VKDUHV�RI����S�HDFK�IRU�WKH�VHFRQG�WUDQFKH�GXH�RI�æ�������IRU�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�)('6���/,0,7�

2Q����)HEUXDU\������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH�����������RUGLQDU\�
VKDUHV�RI����S�HDFK�IRU�SD\PHQW�IRU�WKH�VHFRQG�WUDQFKH�GXH�RI�æ�������IRU�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�2LO�

2Q����0DUFK������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH������������RUGLQDU\�
shares of 0.1p each for a cash consideration of £102,500.

On 30 May 2013 the Company announced that it had agreed to issue 6,600,000 ordinary shares 
of 0.1p each for a cash consideration of £50,000 and for settlement of outstanding trade 
payables of 16,000.

No transaction costs were recorded against the share premium in the year.

2013 2012
£ £

Authorised
2,267,095,595 (2012: 2,267,095,595) ordinary shares of 0.1p 
(2012: 0.1p) each 2,267,096 2,267,096

2,267,096 2,267,096
Allotted, called up and fully paid
417,178,253 (2012: 372,977,376) ordinary shares of 0.1p 
(2012: 0.1p) each 417,178 372,977

417,178 372,977

21.   Share Warrants

At the 30 September 2013, the Company had the following warrants in issue:

Date 
warrant 
granted

Number 
of shares 

outstanding at 
1 Oct 2012

Warrants 
granted during 

the year

Shares 
forfeited / 
expired / 
waived / 

during the 
year

Warrants 
outstanding at 
30 Sept 2013

Option 
price

David Hill 15/08/2011 500,000 - 500,000 - 1.75p 
500,000 - - 500,000 2.25p

Misc 15/08/2011 9,594,650 - 9,594,650 - 1.75p
Warrants 9,594,650 - - 9,594,650 2.25p

Weighted aver-
age exercise 
price 2.25p
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21 Share Warrants (continued)

22 Capital commitments

23 Share based payment

7KH�YHVWLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�ZDUUDQWV�LVVXHG�DW�����S�DUH�WKDW�WKH\�EHFRPH�YDOLG�IURP�WKH�
GDWH�RI�JUDQW�XQWLO����$XJXVW�������1R�RWKHU�FRQGLWLRQV�H[LVW��WKH�ZDUUDQWV�DUH�QRW�GHSHQGHQW�RQ�
future goods or services. 

The fair value of the share warrants was estimated at the date of the grant using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which they were granted.

The following tables list the inputs to the model used for the valuations of share warrants 
extended in 2012.

:HLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�VKDUH�SULFH��SHQFH�� ����S
Weighted average exercise price (pence)  2.25p
Option life (years) 1
5LVN�IUHH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH����� �
Dividend yield  0
9RODWLOLW\����� � ��

7KH�H[SHFWHG�YRODWLOLW\�ZDV�EDVHG�RQ�KLVWRULF�YRODWLOLW\�DQG�UHñHFWV�WKH�DVVXPSWLRQ�
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which many not necessarily 
be the actual outcome. No other features of the options were incorporated into the 
measurement of fair value, and non-market conditions have not been included in 
calculating the fair value. The charge recognised in the consolidated statement of 
FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�VKDUH�ZDUUDQWV�ZDV�æQLO��������æ��������

There were no capital commitments at 30 September 2013 or 30 September 2012.

On 15 August 2011, the Company granted to Directors and other individuals options 
RYHU�D�WRWDO�RI������������RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�RI����S�HDFK�DW�D�SULFH�RI���SHQQ\�SHU�VKDUH�
as disclosed in the announcement dated 16 August 2011. Half of the options vest once 
WKH�FORVLQJ�PLG�PDUNHW�VKDUH�SULFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�EHHQ�PRUH�WKDQ�RU�HTXDO�WR�
2 pence for a period of 15 consecutive business days. The remainder vest once the 
FORVLQJ�PLG�PDUNHW�VKDUH�SULFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�EHHQ�PRUH�WKDQ�RU�HTXDO�WR���
pence for a period of 15 consecutive days. The options are exercisable on or following 
WKH�ðUVW�DQQLYHUVDU\�RI�WKH�GDWH�RI�LVVXH�DQG�ZLOO�ODSVH�RQ�WKH�WHQWK�DQQLYHUVDU\�RI�WKH�
date of issue. Since the issue date 5,500,000 options have lapsed.

On 13 December 2012, the Company granted to various individuals options over a 
WRWDO�RI�����������RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�RI����S�HDFK�DW�D�SULFH�RI�����SHQFH�SHU�VKDUH�DV�
GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH�DQQRXQFHPHQW�GDWHG����'HFHPEHU�������+DOI�RI�WKH�RSWLRQV�YHVW�
RQFH�WKH�FORVLQJ�PLG�PDUNHW�VKDUH�SULFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�EHHQ�PRUH�WKDQ�RU�HTXDO�
to 2 pence for a period of 15 consecutive business days. The remainder vest once 
WKH�FORVLQJ�PLG�PDUNHW�VKDUH�SULFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�EHHQ�PRUH�WKDQ�RU�HTXDO�WR���
pence for a period of 15 consecutive days. The options are exercisable on or following 
WKH�ðUVW�DQQLYHUVDU\�RI�WKH�GDWH�RI�LVVXH�DQG�ZLOO�ODSVH�RQ�WKH�WHQWK�DQQLYHUVDU\�RI�WKH�
date of issue. Since the issue date 2,610,000 options have lapsed.



2SWLRQV�JUDQWHG�LQ�����
Weighted average share price (pence) 0.95p
Weighted average exercise price (pence) 1p
Option life (years) 1
Risk free interest rate (%) 2
Dividend yield 0
Volatility (%) 60

2SWLRQV�JUDQWHG�LQ�����
Weighted average share price (pence) 0.7p
Weighted average exercise price (pence) 1.5p
Option life (years) 1
Risk free interest rate (%) 2
Dividend yield 0
Volatility (%) 60
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Holder Options held 
at 1 October 

2012

Number of new 
RSWLRQV�JUDQWHG�

in the year

Number of options 
forfeited in the 

year

Options held at 
30 September 

2013 Option price
Deborah White 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 1p
David Hill 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 1p
Others 6,000,000 - 2,000,000 4,000,000 1p
Others - 7,695,000 2,610,000 5,085,000 1.5p

Total 16,000,000 7,695,000 4,610,000 19,085,000

There were no share options exercised during the year (2012: nil). 

The fair value of the share options was estimated at the date of the grant using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which they were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the valuations of share options: 
granted in 2011.

7KH�H[SHFWHG�YRODWLOLW\�ZDV�EDVHG�RQ�KLVWRULF�YRODWLOLW\�DQG�UHñHFWV�WKH�DVVXPSWLRQ�WKDW�WKH�
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which many not necessarily be the actual 
outcome. No other features of the options were incorporated into the measurement of fair 
value, and non-market conditions have not been included in calculating the fair value. The 
amount debited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for share options was 
æQLO��������æ���������

Details of the Options are as follows:
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2013 2012
£ £

Cash available on demand 17,025 40,409

17,025 40,409
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25.   Retirement benefit schemes

26.   Operating lease rental commitments

27.   Notes supporting the cash flow statement

1R�SD\PHQWV�ZHUH�PDGH�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�'LUHFWRUV�WR�DQ\�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHðW�VFKHPHV�LQ�WKH�
year (2012: nil). 

At 30 September 2013, the Group had commitments under operating leases as follows:

&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�WKH�FDVK�ñRZ�VWDWHPHQW�FRPSULVHV�

30 Sept
2013

30 Sept
2012

Land and 
EXLOGLQJV

Land and 
EXLOGLQJV

£ £

Within one year 54,000 3,750
More than one year 4,500 -

58,500 3,750

Related Party relationship Transaction amount %DODQFH�RZLQJ���RZHG
2013 2012 2013 2012

£ £ £ £
Purchases from companies in which Directors 
RU�WKHLU�LPPHGLDWH�IDPLO\�KDYH�D�VLJQLÀFDQW�
controlling interest 33,558 54,686 14,483 13,359
Amounts lent to the Company by 
immediate family members of the Directors - - 30,000 32,000

24 Transactions with Directors and other related parties

Loans from Directors

Other transactions with Directors

At 30 September 2013 there were nil loans due to Directors (2012: £nil).

$V�VWDWHG�LQ�QRWH����WR�WKH�DFFRXQWV�D�WRWDO�RI�æ���������������æ���������LV�GXH�WR�FHUWDLQ�
Directors as unpaid remuneration. 

All amounts owing to related parties are payable on demand with no interest accruing.



28.   Events after the Reporting Period

Subscriptions and funding

2Q����1RYHPEHU�������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH������������
RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�RI����S�HDFK�IRU�D�FDVK�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�æ���������IRU�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�
RXWVWDQGLQJ�WUDGH�SD\DEOHV�RI�æ�������DQG�DV�SD\PHQW�RI�SDUW�RI�WKH�VHFRQG�WUDQFKH�
GXH�RI�æ�������IRU�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�2LO�3URGXFWLRQV�

2Q����-DQXDU\�������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH�����������
ordinary shares of 0.1p each for a cash consideration of £81,000 and for settlement of 
RXWVWDQGLQJ�WUDGH�SD\DEOHV�RI�æ������

47

Passion Project
On 25 November 2013, the Company announced that it had entered into a Legal 
Agreement with ten leading London professional football clubs’ community trust 
schemes to deliver a pan London community football tournament. The tournament 
VWDUWHG�LQ�$XWXPQ������DQG�FRQFOXGHG�ZLWK�WKH�ðQDO�DW�WKH�/RQGRQ�6RFFHUGRPH�RQ����
)HEUXDU\�������

Winning in the Game of Life

On 21 February 2013, the Company announced that it had signed an agreement to expand 
the scope of the original licence agreement with US based, Spirituality for Kids International 
Inc. (“SFK”). This expanded collaboration enables Milestone and SFK to generate revenues 
from the delivery of co-developed and amended programmes, as well as potentially securing 
social impact funding as a result of the positive changes in behaviour that these programmes 
and activities can have on young people. Net revenues from the sale of these collaborated 
PDWHULDOV�ZLOO�EH�VSOLW�HTXDOO\�EHWZHHQ�0LOHVWRQH�DQG�6).�
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Company balance sheet at 30 
September 2013  Company No: 04689130

Note 2013 2012
£ £

Fixed assets
Intangible assets 5 94,541 132,355
7DQJLEOH�À[HG�DVVHWV� 6 -  -
Investments 7 200,326 665,195  

294,867   797,550   

Current assets
Debtors 8 39,928 192,293
Cash at bank and in hand 8,766 30,907

48,694 223,200

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 (1,096,656) (899,819)
Interest bearing loans 10 (470,937) (422,014)

(1,567,593) (1,321,833)

Net current liabilities (1,518,899) (1,098,633)

Total assets less current liabilities (1,224,032) (301,083)

Non-current liabilities
Other liabilities 11 - (160,000)

- (160,000)
Net liabilities (1,224,032) (461,083)

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 12 417,178 372,977
Share premium account 14 11,847,178 11,395,961
Shares to be issued reserve 14 109,313 70,000
Capital redemption reserve 14 2,732,904 2,732,904
3URÀW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW 14 (16,330,605) (15,032,925)
Shareholders' funds (1,224,032) (461,083)

7KH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�DXWKRULVHG�IRU�LVVXH�RQ����)HEUXDU\�����

7KH�QRWHV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����IRUP�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Deborah White
*OPLM�,_LJ\[P]L�6ɉJLY�HUK�0U[LYPT�*OHPYTHU
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7KHVH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�
convention and applicable accounting standards, and on a going concern basis. The 
principal accounting policies have remained consistent with those adopted in the 
previous year.

1. Principal accounting policies

'HSUHFLDWLRQ�LV�SURYLGHG�DW�UDWHV�FDOFXODWHG�WR�ZULWH�Rσ�WKH�FRVW�RU�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�ð[HG�
assets, less their estimated residual value, over the expected useful economic lives on 
the following basis:

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation 

'HIHUUHG�WD[�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�RQ�DOO�WLPLQJ�GLσHUHQFHV�ZKHUH�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQV�RU�HYHQWV�WKDW�JLYH�
the Company an obligation to pay more tax in the future, or right to pay less tax in the future, 
have occurred by the balance sheet date. The recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to 
WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�WKH�JURXS�DQWLFLSDWHV�PDNLQJ�VXτFLHQW�WD[DEOH�SURðWV�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH�WR�DEVRUE�WKH�
UHYHUVDO�RI�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�WLPLQJ�GLσHUHQFHV��'HIHUUHG�WD[�EDODQFHV�DUH�QRW�GLVFRXQWHG�

Deferred taxation

-P_[\YLZ��Ä[[PUNZ��JVTW\[LY�
HUK�VɉJL�LX\PWTLU[!�

Notes to the Company accounts for the year 
ended 30 September 2013

�������WLY�HUU\T�VY�V]LY�
[OL�WLYPVK�VM�[OL�SPJLUJL

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�LQLWLDOO\�DQG�VXEVHTXHQWO\�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW��3URYLVLRQ�
LV�PDGH�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW�ZKHUH�DSSURSULDWH��,QFRPH�DQG�H[SHQGLWXUH�DULVLQJ�RQ�ðQDQFLDO�
LQVWUXPHQWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�RQ�WKH�DFFUXDOV�EDVLV��DQG�FUHGLWHG�RU�FKDUJHG�WR�WKH�SURðW�
DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�LQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�SHULRG�WR�ZKLFK�LW�UHODWHV�

Financial instruments

,QYHVWPHQWV�KHOG�DV�ð[HG�DVVHWV�DUH�VWDWHG�DW�FRVW�OHVV�DQ\�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW���

Investments

7KH�*URXSâV�EXVLQHVV�DFWLYLWLHV��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�WKH�IDFWRUV�OLNHO\�WR�DσHFW�LWV�IXWXUH�GHYHORSPHQW��
SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�SRVLWLRQ�DUH�VHW�RXW�LQ�WKH�&KDLUPDQâV�VWDWHPHQW��7KH�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�
*URXS��LWV�FDVK�ñRZV��OLTXLGLW\�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�ERUURZLQJ�IDFLOLWLHV�DUH�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�6WUDWHJLF�
UHSRUW�DQG�WKH�'LUHFWRUâV�UHSRUW��,Q�DGGLWLRQ�QRWH����WR�WKH�*URXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQFOXGHV�
WKH�*URXSâV�REMHFWLYHV��SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHVVHV�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�LWV�FDSLWDO��LWV�ðQDQFLDO�ULVN�
PDQDJHPHQW�REMHFWLYHV��GHWDLOV�RI�LWV�ðQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�H[SRVXUHV�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�DQG�
OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�

Going Concern
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Going Concern (continued)

7KH�QHW�OLDELOLW\�EDODQFH�VKHHW�SRVLWLRQ�DV�DW����6HSWHPEHU�������EHLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\âV�ðQDQFLDO�
\HDU�HQG��ZDV�æ�����������������æ�����������6XEVHTXHQW�WR�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH��WKH�%RDUG�
has been able to agree funding in the form of further share issues raising £258,813 in cash, 
H[FKDQJHG�æ�������ZRUWK�RI�VKDUHV�IRU�VHUYLFHV�UHFHLYHG�DQG�æ�������ZRUWK�RI�VKDUHV�DV�SDUW�
SD\PHQW�RI�WKH�VHFRQG�WUDQFKH�RI�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�2LO�3URGXFWLRQV��

The Company is reliant upon its continuing ability to manage the timing of settlement both 
of its current liabilities, many of which are overdue, and future liabilities as they arise. Future 
IXQGUDLVLQJ�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�LQ�WKH�LPPHGLDWH�WR�VKRUW�WHUP�WKHUHDIWHU����$V�VXFK��WKH�'LUHFWRUV�
LQWHQG�WR�VWUHQJWKHQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\âV�ðQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�WKURXJK�D�FRPELQDWLRQ�RI�IXUWKHU�
fundraises in the immediate to short term and from trading activities.

The future business model is based around generating revenue through it’s subsidiary, Relative, 
as well as through it’s projects. The Group is already producing revenues although progress 
with some of the technologies has been slower than expected. As a result the Board has 
SUHSDUHG�IRUHFDVWV�WR�UHñHFW�WKLV�DQG�WKH�DJUHHPHQWV�WKDW�KDYH�RU�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�HQWHUHG�
LQWR���7KHVH�IRUHFDVWV�VKRZ�WKH�EXVLQHVV�EHLQJ�SURðWDEOH�DQG�FDVK�JHQHUDWLYH�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH���
However, achieving these forecasts will be dependent upon achieving sales and obtaining 
VXτFLHQW�IXQGLQJ�WR�VHWWOH�H[LVWLQJ�DQG�IXWXUH�REOLJDWLRQV��6KRXOG�DQ\�RI�WKHVH�IDFWRUV�QRW�
deliver the funding envisaged by the Directors, then alternative sources of funds would be 
needed, any discussions for which have not been initiated. 

The Directors have concluded that the need to generate future funds from further fundraising 
and from trading activities to satisfy the settlement of its ongoing and future liabilities 
UHSUHVHQWV�D�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQW\��ZKLFK�PD\�FDVW�VLJQLðFDQW�GRXEW�XSRQ�WKH�*URXSâV�DQG�WKH�
&RPSDQ\âV�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ���1HYHUWKHOHVV�DIWHU�PDNLQJ�HQTXLULHV�DQG�
considering this uncertainty and the measures that can be taken to mitigate the uncertainty, the 
'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�D�UHDVRQDEOH�H[SHFWDWLRQ�WKDW�WKH�*URXS�DQG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�KDYH�DGHTXDWH�
resources to continue in existence for the foreseeable future.  For these reasons they continue 
WR�DGRSW�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�LQ�SUHSDULQJ�WKH�DQQXDO�UHSRUW�DQG�DFFRXQWV��7KH�ðQDQFLDO�
statements do not include any adjustments that would result if the Group and Company was 
unable to continue as a going concern.

Intangible Fixed Assets
([WHUQDOO\�DFTXLUHG�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�FRVW�DQG�VXEVHTXHQWO\�
amortised on a straight line basis over their useful economic lives. The useful economic lives of 
ð[HG�DVVHWV�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DUH�
 Software licenses: 5 years

Convertible debt
The proceeds received on issue of the Company’s convertible debt are allocated into their 
OLDELOLW\�DQG�HTXLW\�FRPSRQHQWV�DQG�SUHVHQWHG�VHSDUDWHO\�LQ�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW��7KH�DPRXQW�
LQLWLDOO\�DWWULEXWHG�WR�WKH�GHEW�FRPSRQHQW�HTXDOV�WKH�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ñRZV�XVLQJ�D�PDUNHW�UDWH�
of interest that would be payable on a similar debt instrument that did not include an option to 
convert.

7KH�GLσHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�QHW�SURFHHGV�RI�WKH�FRQYHUWLEOH�GHEW�DQG�WKH�DPRXQW�DOORFDWHG�
WR�WKH�GHEW�FRPSRQHQW�LV�FUHGLWHG�GLUHFW�WR�HTXLW\�DQG�LV�QRW�VXEVHTXHQWO\�UHPHDVXUHG��2Q�
FRQYHUVLRQ��WKH�GHEW�DQG�HTXLW\�HOHPHQWV�DUH�FUHGLWHG�WR�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�DQG�VKDUH�SUHPLXP�DV�
appropriate.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the instrument are allocated to the liability and 
HTXLW\�FRPSRQHQWV�RI�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW�LQ�SURSRUWLRQ�WR�WKH�DOORFDWLRQ�RI�SURFHHGV�
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2.   Loss for the financial year

0LOHVWRQH�KDV�WDNHQ�DGYDQWDJH�RI�VHFWLRQ�����&RPSDQLHV�$FW������DQG�KDV�QRW�LQFOXGHG�LWV�
RZQ�SURðW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�LQ�WKHVH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��7KH�&RPSDQ\âV�ORVV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�
DIWHU�WD[�ZDV�æ�����������������æ������������7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�RWKHU�JDLQV�RU�ORVVHV�LQ�WKH�\HDU�RU�
the prior year other than the loss for the periods.

3.   Dividends

No dividends have been paid or proposed in the year (2012: nil).

4.   Directors and staff

6WDσ�FRVWV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��LQFOXGLQJ�'LUHFWRUV��ZHUH�DV�IROORZV�

2013 2012
£ £

Wages and salaries 354,137 308,185
Social security costs 37,506 34,659

391,643 342,844

2013 2012
no. no.

Directors and administration 7 5
7 5

5HPXQHUDWLRQ�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�ò�VHH�QRWH���WR�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW��

5.   Intangible Assets
Software
Licenses Total

£ £
Cost
At 1 October 2012 189,073 189,073
Additions - -
At 30 September 2013 189,073 189,073

Depreciation
At 1 October 2012 56,718 56,718
Charge for year 37,814 37,814
At 30 September 2013 94,532 94,532

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH
At 30 September 2013 94,541  94,541  
At 30 September 2012 132,355  132,355  

7KH�DYHUDJH�QXPEHU�RI�VWDσ�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�DV�IROORZV�
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6.   Property, plant and equipment

Since the period end, the Company has settled in shares the remainder of the phase 2 
consideration with the vendors of Oil Productions Ltd. There is no phase 3 consideration payable 
in accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement. This has resulted in an adjustment of 
æ���������

Subsidiaries as at 30 September 2013 were:

All subsidiaries are wholly owned and incorporated in the United Kingdom.

Fixtures and
)LWWLQJV

equipment Total
£ £

Cost
At 1 October 2012 139,074 139,074
At 30 September 2013 139,074 139,074

Depreciation
At 1 October 2012 139,074 139,074
At 30 September 2013 139,074 139,074

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH
At 30 September 2013 -  -  
At 30 September 2012 -  - 

7.   Fixed Asset Investments

Shares in 
subsidiary 

XQGHUWDNLQJV
Trade 

Investments Total
£ £ £

Cost
At 1 October 2012 502,371 162,824 665,195
Adjustments (255,450) - (255,450)
Disposals - (57,445) (57,445)
At 30 September 2013 246,921 105,379 352,300

              
Amounts written off
At 1 October 2012 - - -
Write down in carrying-value (151,974) - (151,974)
At 30 September 2013 (151,974) - (151,974)

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH
At 30 September 2013 94,947 105,379 200,326
At 30 September 2012 502,371 162,824 665,195

Oil Productions Limited 
OnSide Now Limited, dormant
Nexstar League Limited, dormant

∙ 
∙
∙
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8. Debtors

9. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

The amounts owed from group undertakings have been full provided for in the year.

10.   Interest bearing loans and borrowings
       - due within one year

2013 2012
£ £

Trade debtors 1,800 7,200
Other debtors 37,642 43,601
Amounts owed from group undertakings - 126,037
Prepayments and accrued income 485 15,455

39,927 192,293

,QFOXGHG�LQ�FUHGLWRUV�DQG�DFFUXDOV�DUH�DPRXQWV�RI�æ��������DQG�æ���������������æ��������
DQG�æ�������UHVSHFWLYHO\�UHODWLQJ�WR�XQSDLG�'LUHFWRUVâ�UHPXQHUDWLRQ��7KLV�KDV�EHHQ�DFFUXHG�LQ�
accordance with the payments agreed between the Company and Directors. 

2Q����$XJXVW�������WKH�*URXS�DFTXLUHG������RI�WKH�YRWLQJ�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�RI�2LO�3URGXFWLRQV�
/LPLWHG��&RQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�æ��������ZDV�GLVFRXQWHG�DW������$W����6HSWHPEHU������
WKLV�DPRXQWHG�WR�D�WRWDO�RI�æ���������6LQFH�WKDW�GDWH��WKLV�IXUWKHU�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�UHGXFHG�
WR�æ��������ZKLFK�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�DQG�KDV�EHHQ�VHWWOHG�WKURXJK�WKH�LVVXH�RI�VKDUHV�
SRVW�\HDU�HQG��7KH�UHPDLQLQJ�OLDELOLW\�KDV�EHHQ�ZULWWHQ�Rσ��

2013 2012
£ £

Trade creditors 373,118 240,200
Other creditors 126,670 227,315
2WKHU�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV 40,000 40,000
Accruals and deferred income 435,737 298,549
Taxation and Social Security 121,131 93,755

1,096,656 899,819

2013 2012
£ £

Interest bearing loans 470,937 422,014
470,937 422,014

/RDQ�EDODQFHV�DUH�XQVHFXUHG�DQG�KDYH�QR�ð[HG�UHSD\PHQW�VFKHGXOH�

7KH�LQWHUHVW�FKDUJH�LQ�WKH�SURðW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�æ���������������æ���������
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11.   Non-current liabilities

2013 2012
£ £

Contingent consideration - 160,000
- 160,000

,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�QRWH����WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�FRQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�EURXJKW�IRUZDUG�RI�æ��������
KDV�EHHQ�ZULWWHQ�Rσ�

12.   Share Capital

2013 2012
£ £

Allotted, called up and fully paid
417,178,253 (2012: 372,977,376) ordinary shares of 0.1p 
(2012: 0.1p) each 417,178 372,977

417,178 372,977

2Q����2FWREHU������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH���������RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�
of 0.1p each for a cash consideration of £5,000. 

On 23 October 2012 the Company announced that it had agreed to issue 3,000,000 ordinary 
shares of 0.1p each for settlement of outstanding trade payables of £30,000. 

2Q����1RYHPEHU������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH������������RUGLQDU\�
shares of 0.1p each for a cash consideration of £250,000. 

2Q����-DQXDU\������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH�����������RUGLQDU\�
VKDUHV�RI����S�HDFK�IRU�WKH�VHFRQG�WUDQFKH�GXH�RI�æ�������IRU�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�)('6���/,0,7�

2Q����)HEUXDU\������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH�����������RUGLQDU\�
VKDUHV�RI����S�HDFK�IRU�SD\PHQW�IRU�WKH�VHFRQG�WUDQFKH�GXH�RI�æ�������IRU�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�2LO�

2Q����0DUFK������WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQQRXQFHG�WKDW�LW�KDG�DJUHHG�WR�LVVXH������������RUGLQDU\�
shares of 0.1p each for a cash consideration of £102,500.

On 30 May 2013 the Company announced that it had agreed to issue 6,600,000 ordinary shares 
of 0.1p each for a cash consideration of £50,000 and for settlement of outstanding trade 
payables of 16,000.

No transaction costs were recorded against the share premium in the year.

13.   Share Warrants

Details of the share warrants in issue for the Company are as disclosed for the Group in note 21 
to the consolidated accounts. 
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14.   Share premium account and reserves

Share 
capital

Share 
premium

Shares to be 
issued

3URÀW�DQG�
loss account

Capital 
redemption 

reserve Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

At 1 October 
2012 372,977 11,395,961 70,000 (15,032,925) 2,732,904 (461,083)
Loss for the year - - - 1,297,680 - 1,297,680
Cash received in 
advance of share 
issue - - 69,313 - - 69,313
Share capital 
issued 44,201 451,217 (30,000) - - 465,418
Share options / 
warrants - - - - - -
At 30 September 
2013 417,178 11,847,178 109,313 (16,330,605) 2,732,904 (1,224,032)

2Q�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�)('6���/,0,7�WKH�GHIHUUHG�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�LV�SD\DEOH�LQ�VKDUHV�DW�D�ð[HG�
market price. This deferred consideration is payable on the achievement of certain performance 
criteria. Part of these criteria has been met with the issue of £30,000 worth of shares, the 
remaining criteria are also expected to be met.

3ULRU�WR�WKH�\HDU�HQG��FDVK�RI�æ�������ZDV�UHFHLYHG�LQ�DGYDQFH�RI�WKH�LVVXH�RI�WKH�DVVRFLDWHG�
HTXLW\�VKDUHV�ZKLFK�ZHUH�LVVXHG�WR�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH��

15.   Capital commitments

There were no capital commitments at 30 September 2013 or 30 September 2012.

16.   Share Based Payment

Details of the share based payments in issue for the Company are as disclosed for the Group in 
note 23 to the consolidated accounts. 

17.   Transactions with Directors and other related parties

7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�WDNHQ�DGYDQWDJH�RI�VHFWLRQ����RI�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUG����5HODWHG�
Party Transactions) and has not disclosed details of transactions with wholly owned group 
FRPSDQLHV�RQ�WKH�JURXQGV�WKDW�WKHVH�WUDQVDFWLRQV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ðQDQFLDO�
statements. Details of related party transactions for the Company are as disclosed for the Group 
LQ�QRWH����WR�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�DFFRXQWV��

18.   Retirement benefit schemes

1R�SD\PHQWV�ZHUH�PDGH�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�'LUHFWRUV�WR�DQ\�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHðW�VFKHPHV�LQ�WKH�\HDU�
(2012: nil).

19.   Post balance sheet events

Details of events after the reporting period for the Company are as disclosed for the Group in 
note 28 to the consolidated accounts. 
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Report of the independent auditors
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF MILESTONE GROUP PLC
:H�KDYH�DXGLWHG�WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�0LOHVWRQH�*URXS�3/&�IRU�WKH�\HDU�
ended 30 September 2013 which comprise the parent company Balance Sheet and the related 
QRWHV���WR�����7KH�ðQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�IUDPHZRUN�WKDW�KDV�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�LQ�WKHLU�SUHSDUDWLRQ�
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might 
VWDWH�WR�WKH�FRPSDQ\âV�PHPEHUV�WKRVH�PDWWHUV�ZH�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�VWDWH�WR�WKHP�LQ�DQ�DXGLWRUâV�
report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a 
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 15, the 
GLUHFWRUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�IRU�EHLQJ�VDWLVðHG�
that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the 
ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DSSOLFDEOH�ODZ�DQG�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�6WDQGDUGV�RQ�$XGLWLQJ�
�8.�DQG�,UHODQG����7KRVH�VWDQGDUGV�UHTXLUH�XV�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�&RXQFLOâV�
(FRC’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

$�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�VFRSH�RI�DQ�DXGLW�RI�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LV�SURYLGHG�RQ�WKH�)5&âV�ZHEVLWH�
at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

,Q�IRUPLQJ�RXU�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��ZKLFK�LV�QRW�PRGLðHG��ZH�KDYH�FRQVLGHUHG�
WKH�DGHTXDF\�RI�WKH�GLVFORVXUH�PDGH�LQ�QRWH���WR�WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
concerning the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ�WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

Emphasis of matter – Going concern

Opinion on financial statements

JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\âV�DσDLUV�DV�DW����6HSWHPEHU������DQG�
of its loss for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; and
KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW������

∙ 

∙

∙
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The going concern status of the company is dependent upon the management of the timing of 
settlement of its liabilities and the raising of further funds in the immediate to short term and 
WKHUHDIWHU�RQ�WKH�IRUHFDVW�SURðWDELOLW\�RI�NH\�SURMHFWV�ZKLFK�KDYH�QRW�\HW�FRPPHQFHG�DQG�IRU�
which the degree of success cannot yet be reliably demonstrated. 

Forecasts prepared by management indicate that if they are unable to manage the company’s 
liabilities as planned or the external fundraising does not occur in the immediate term and, 
VXEVHTXHQWO\��WKH�IXWXUH�SURMHFWV�GR�QRW�SURYH�DV�SURðWDEOH�DV�IRUHFDVW�WKH�FRPSDQ\�ZRXOG�
KDYH�DQ�LPPHGLDWH�UHTXLUHPHQW�WR�VHHN�DOWHUQDWLYH�VRXUFHV�RI�IXQGLQJ��7KHVH�FRQGLWLRQV��DORQJ�
ZLWK�WKH�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�H[SODLQHG�LQ�QRWH���WR�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��LQGLFDWH�WKH�H[LVWHQFH�
RI�D�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQW\�ZKLFK�PD\�FDVW�VLJQLðFDQW�GRXEW�DERXW�WKH�FRPSDQ\âV�DELOLW\�WR�
FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ��7KH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�GR�QRW�LQFOXGH�WKH�DGMXVWPHQWV�WKDW�
would result if the company was unable to continue as a going concern.

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the 
ðQDQFLDO�\HDU�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�LV�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�ðQDQFLDO�
statements.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 
UHTXLUHV�XV�WR�UHSRUW�WR�\RX�LI��LQ�RXU�RSLQLRQ�

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

DGHTXDWH�DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�NHSW��RU�UHWXUQV�DGHTXDWH�IRU�RXU�DXGLW�KDYH�
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
WKH�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�QRW�LQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV�DQG�UHWXUQV��RU
FHUWDLQ�GLVFORVXUHV�RI�GLUHFWRUVâ�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�VSHFLðHG�E\�ODZ�DUH�QRW�PDGH��RU
ZH�KDYH�QRW�UHFHLYHG�DOO�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQV�ZH�UHTXLUH�IRU�RXU�DXGLW�

∙ 

∙
∙
∙

:H�KDYH�UHSRUWHG�VHSDUDWHO\�RQ�WKH�JURXS�ðQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�0LOHVWRQH�*URXS�3/&�IRU�WKH�
year ended 30 September 2013.

Other matter

James Keeton
Senior Statutory Auditor, for and on behalf of 
Nexia Smith & Williamson 
Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants
Portwall Place
Portwall Lane
Bristol
BS1 6NA

'DWH�����)HEUXDU\�����
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